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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”). We intend for all such forward-looking statements to be covered by the applicable safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements
contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements relate to expectations, beliefs, projections,
future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. In some cases, you can identify
forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,”
“believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” or “potential” or the negative of these words and phrases or similar words or phrases which are predictions of or indicate
future events or trends and which do not relate solely to historical matters. You can also identify forward-looking statements by discussions of strategy, plans or
intentions.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q reflect our current views about future events and are subject to
numerous known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and changes in circumstances that may cause our actual results to differ significantly from
those expressed in any forward-looking statement. The following factors, among others, could cause actual results and future events to differ materially from
those set forth or contemplated in the forward-looking statements: general economic and financial conditions; market volatility; inflation; any potential
recession or threat of recession; interest rates; recent and ongoing disruption in the debt and banking markets; tenant, geographic concentration, and the
financial condition of our tenants; competition for tenants and competition with sellers of similar properties if we elect to dispose of our properties; our access
to, and the availability of capital; whether we will be able to refinance or repay debt; whether work-from-home trends or other factors will impact the
attractiveness of industrial and/or office assets; whether we will be successful in renewing leases as they expire; future financial and operating results, plans,
objectives, expectations and intentions; our ability to manage cash flows; dilution resulting from equity issuances; expected sources of financing, including the
ability to maintain the commitments under our revolving credit facility, and the availability and attractiveness of the terms of any such financing; legislative
and regulatory changes that could adversely affect our business; cybersecurity incidents or disruptions to our or our third party information technology systems;
our ability to maintain our status as a REIT and our Operating Partnership as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes; our future capital
expenditures, operating expenses, net income, operating income, cash flow and developments and trends of the real estate industry; whether we will be
successful in the pursuit of our business plan, including any acquisitions, investments, or dispositions; whether we will succeed in our investment objectives;
any fluctuation and/or volatility of the trading price of our common shares; risks associated with our dependence on key personnel whose continued service is
not guaranteed; and other factors, including those risks disclosed in “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q.

While forward-looking statements reflect our good faith beliefs, assumptions and expectations, they are not guarantees of future performance. The
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We disclaim any obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statement to reflect changes in underlying assumptions or factors, of new information, data or methods, future events or other changes after
the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, except as required by applicable law. We caution investors not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking
statements, which are based only on information currently available to us.

Notice Regarding Non-GAAP Financial Measures. In addition to U.S. GAAP financial measures, this document contains and may refer to certain non-
GAAP financial measures. These non-GAAP financial measures are in addition to, not a substitute for or superior to, measures of financial performance
prepared in accordance with GAAP. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered replacements for, and should be read together with, the
most comparable GAAP financial measures. Reconciliations to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures and statements of why management
believes these measures are useful to investors are included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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Available Information

We make available on the “SEC Filings” subpage of the investors section of our website (www.pkst.com) free of charge our quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, including this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, annual reports on Form 10-K, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements, ownership reports on Forms 3,
4 and 5 and any amendments to those reports as soon as practicable after we electronically file such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”). Our electronically filed reports can also be obtained on the SEC’s internet site at http://www.sec.gov. Further, copies of our Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics and the charters for the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees of our Board of Trustees (the “Board”) are
also available on the “Governance - Governance Documents” subpage of the “Investors” section of our website. We use our website (www.pkst.com) as a
routine channel of distribution of company information, including press releases, presentations, and supplemental information, and as a means of disclosing
material non-public information and for complying with our disclosure obligations under Regulation FD. Accordingly, investors should monitor our website in
addition to following press releases, SEC filings, and public conference calls and webcasts. Investors and others can receive notifications of new information
posted on our investor relations website in real time by signing up for email alerts.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited; in thousands, except units and share amounts)

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 446,800  $ 391,802 
Restricted cash 14,496  9,208 
Real estate:

Land 225,330  231,175 
Building and improvements 1,942,591  1,968,314 
Tenant origination and absorption cost 394,728  402,251 
Construction in progress 1,069  8,371 

Total real estate 2,563,718  2,610,111 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (581,421) (550,552)

Total real estate, net 1,982,297  2,059,559 
Intangible assets, net 28,281  29,690 
Deferred rent receivable 65,289  63,272 
Deferred leasing costs, net 18,117  19,112 
Goodwill 74,052  78,647 
Right of use assets 33,771  33,736 
Interest rate swap asset 22,710  26,942 
Other assets 42,172  27,446 
Real estate assets and other assets held for sale, net 2,730  50,211 

Total assets $ 2,730,715  $ 2,789,625 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Debt, net $ 1,408,517  $ 1,435,923 
Distributions payable 8,486  8,344 
Due to related parties 573  573 
Intangible liabilities, net 14,552  16,023 
Lease liability 46,934  46,281 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 64,970  78,229 
Liabilities held for sale 92  539 
Total liabilities 1,544,124  1,585,912 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Shareholders’ equity:
Common shares, $0.001 par value; shares authorized, 800,000,000; shares outstanding in the aggregate, 36,370,740 and 36,304,145
as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively 37  36 
Additional paid-in capital 2,994,303  2,990,085 
Cumulative distributions (1,092,609) (1,076,000)
Accumulated deficit (826,597) (827,854)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 21,986  25,817 

Total shareholders’ equity 1,097,120  1,112,084 
Noncontrolling interests 89,471  91,629 
Total equity 1,186,591  1,203,713 

Total liabilities and equity $ 2,730,715  $ 2,789,625 

See accompanying notes.
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PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited; in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

  Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
  2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue:

Rental income $ 55,952  $ 62,540  $ 115,179  $ 129,513 
Expenses:

Property operating expense 5,658  6,919  12,337  14,029 
Property tax expense 4,513  5,545  9,023  11,367 
Property management fees 359  430  769  952 
General and administrative expenses 9,116  12,030  18,796  21,758 
Corporate operating expenses to related parties 169  341  336  718 
Depreciation and amortization 22,998  30,472  46,413  61,827 
Real estate impairment provision 6,505  397,373  7,881  397,373 

Total expenses 49,318  453,110  95,555  508,024 
Income before other income (expenses) 6,634  (390,570) 19,624  (378,511)
Other income (expenses):

Interest expense (15,845) (16,068) (31,994) (33,082)
Other income, net 5,167  2,747  9,213  3,959 
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  (17,508) —  (32,169)
(Loss) gain from disposition of assets (57) (9,701) 9,120  20,909 
Goodwill impairment provision —  —  (4,594) — 
Transaction expenses —  (21,303) —  (24,490)

Net (loss) income (4,101) (452,403) 1,369  (443,384)
Distributions to redeemable preferred shareholders —  —  —  (2,376)
Preferred units redemption —  (4,970) —  (4,970)
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests 333  40,909  (112) 40,324 
Net (loss) income attributable to controlling interests (3,768) (416,464) 1,257  (410,406)
Distributions to redeemable noncontrolling interests attributable to common
shareholders —  (13) —  (36)

Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders $ (3,768) $ (416,477) $ 1,257  $ (410,442)

Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders per share, basic and diluted $ (0.11) $ (11.59) $ 0.03  $ (11.43)

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 36,349,950  35,922,706  36,329,485  35,960,804 

See accompanying notes.
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PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited; in thousands)
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Net (loss) income $ (4,101) $ (452,403) $ 1,369  $ (443,384)
Other comprehensive income:
Equity in other comprehensive (loss) income of unconsolidated joint venture —  (973) —  (83)
Change in fair value of swap agreements (4,301) 8,040  (4,170) (295)
Total comprehensive income (loss) (8,402) (445,336) (2,801) (443,762)
Distributions to redeemable preferred shareholders —  —  —  (2,376)
Preferred units redemption charge —  (4,970) —  (4,970)
Distributions to redeemable noncontrolling interests attributable to common shareholders —  (13) —  (36)
Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 683  40,277  227  40,347 

Comprehensive loss attributable to common shareholders $ (7,719) $ (410,042) $ (2,574) $ (410,797)

See accompanying notes.
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PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Unaudited; in thousands, except share data)

Common Shares Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Cumulative
Distributions

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity

Non-
controlling
Interests

Total
EquityShares Amount

Balance as of December 31, 2023 36,304,145  $ 36  $ 2,990,085  $ (1,076,000) $ (827,854) $ 25,817  $ 1,112,084  $ 91,629  $ 1,203,713 
Deferred equity compensation 41,674  —  1,579  —  —  —  1,579  —  1,579 
Shares acquired to satisfy employee tax
withholding requirements on vesting RSUs (4,875) —  (79) —  —  —  (79) —  (79)
Cash distributions to common shareholders —  —  —  (8,273) —  —  (8,273) —  (8,273)
Exchange of noncontrolling interests 5,664  —  486  —  —  —  486  (486) — 
Distributions to noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (723) (723)
Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  5,025  —  5,025  445  5,470 
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  121  121  12  133 

Balance as of March 31, 2024 36,346,608  $ 36  $ 2,992,071  $ (1,084,273) $ (822,829) $ 25,938  $ 1,110,943  $ 90,877  $ 1,201,820 

Deferred equity compensation 24,132  1  2,232  —  —  —  2,233  —  2,233 
Cash distributions to common shareholders —  —  —  (8,336) —  —  (8,336) —  (8,336)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (724) (724)
Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  (3,768) —  (3,768) (333) (4,101)
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  (3,952) (3,952) (349) (4,301)

Balance as of June 30, 2024 36,370,740  $ 37  $ 2,994,303  $ (1,092,609) $ (826,597) $ 21,986  $ 1,097,120  $ 89,471  $ 1,186,591 

PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Unaudited; in thousands, except share data)

Common Shares Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Cumulative
Distributions

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Shareholders’

Equity

Non-
controlling
Interests

Total
EquityShares Amount

Balance as of December 31, 2022 35,999,898  $ 36  $ 2,948,600  $ (1,036,678) $ (269,926) $ 40,636  $ 1,682,668  $ 174,655  $ 1,857,323 
Deferred equity compensation 13,620  —  2,556  —  —  —  2,556  —  2,556 
Shares acquired to satisfy employee tax
withholding requirements on vesting RSUs (5,700) —  (381) —  —  —  (381) —  (381)
Cash distributions to common shareholders —  —  —  (14,873) —  —  (14,873) —  (14,873)
Repurchase of common shares (896) —  (60) —  —  —  (60) —  (60)
Reclass of noncontrolling interest subject to
redemption —  —  —  —  —  —  —  10  10 
Distributions to noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (1,435) (1,435)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
subject to redemption —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (2) (2)
Offering costs —  —  (9) —  —  —  (9) —  (9)
Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  6,033  —  6,033  585  6,618 
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  (6,789) (6,789) (656) (7,445)

Balance as of March 31, 2023 36,006,922  $ 36  $ 2,950,706  $ (1,051,551) $ (263,893) $ 33,847  $ 1,669,145  $ 173,157  $ 1,842,302 

Deferred equity compensation 33,092  —  4,034  —  —  —  4,034  —  4,034 



Shares acquired to satisfy employee tax
withholding requirements on vesting RSUs (49,738) —  (1,069) —  —  —  (1,069) —  (1,069)
Cash distributions to common shareholders —  —  —  (8,117) —  —  (8,117) —  (8,117)
Share class conversion (69,988) —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Exchange of noncontrolling interests 4,188  —  370  —  —  —  370  (370) — 
Reclass of redeemable non-controlling
interest —  —  —  —  —  —  —  3,801  3,801 
Distributions to noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (776) (776)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
subject to redemption —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (1) (1)
Offering costs —  —  4,970  —  —  —  4,970  —  4,970 
Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  (416,476) —  (416,476) (40,909) (457,385)
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  6,435  6,435  632  7,067 

Balance as of June 30, 2023 35,924,476  $ 36  $ 2,959,011  $ (1,059,668) $ (680,369) $ 40,282  $ 1,259,292  $ 135,534  $ 1,394,826 

See accompanying notes.
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PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited; in thousands)
Six Months Ended June 30,

  2024 2023
Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 1,369  $ (443,384)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of building and building improvements 30,988  39,592 
Amortization of leasing costs and intangibles, including ground leasehold interests and leasing costs 16,170  22,976 
Amortization of above and below market leases, net (631) (413)
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt premium 2,221  2,113 
Amortization of swap interest 63  63 
Deferred rent (1,831) (6,060)
Net gain from sale of operating properties (9,120) (20,909)
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  32,169 
Gain from investments (236) (51)
Impairment provision - real estate 7,881  397,373 
Impairment provision - goodwill 4,594  — 
Share-based compensation 3,811  6,590 
Discount amortization - note receivable (298) — 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Deferred leasing costs and other assets 73  (5,239)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (14,326) 240 
Due to related parties, net —  (295)

Net cash provided by operating activities 40,728  24,765 
Investing Activities:
Proceeds from disposition of properties 69,940  291,023 
Payments for construction in progress (2,029) (1,719)
Purchase of investments (41) (149)
Net cash provided by investing activities 67,870  289,155 
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowings - Credit Facility —  400,000 
Principal payoff of secured indebtedness - Mortgage Debt (24,563) (19,013)
Principal payoff of indebtedness - Term Loan —  (400,000)
Principal amortization payments on secured indebtedness (2,984) (3,643)
Deferred financing costs (2,647) (2,580)
Offering costs 91  (9)
Redemption of preferred units —  (125,000)
Repurchase of common shares —  (4,443)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (1,447) (2,401)
Distributions to preferred units subject to redemption —  (4,891)
Distributions to common shareholders (16,466) (24,551)
Financing lease payment (217) (215)
Repurchase of common shares to satisfy employee tax withholding requirements (79) (1,450)
Net cash used in financing activities (48,312) (188,196)
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 60,286  125,724 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at the beginning of the period 401,010  237,944 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at the end of the period $ 461,296  $ 363,668 
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Supplemental Disclosures of Significant Non-Cash Transactions:
Decrease in fair value swap agreement $ (4,170) $ (295)
Accrued tenant obligations $ 2,800  $ 7,008 
Distributions payable to common shareholders $ 8,336  $ 8,121 
Distributions payable to noncontrolling interests $ 724  $ 795 
Exchange of noncontrolling interest to common stock $ 486  $ — 
Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities $ —  $ 1,358 
Note receivable in exchange for sale of asset $ (14,286) $ — 
Accrued for construction in progress $ —  $ 286 
Shortfall Loan related to unconsolidated joint venture $ 3,050  $ — 
Shortfall Loan proceeds treated as contributions to unconsolidated joint venture $ (3,050) $ — 

See accompanying notes.
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PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2024

(Unaudited; dollars in thousands unless otherwise noted and excluding per share amounts)

1.     Organization

Peakstone Realty Trust (“PKST” or the “Company”) is an internally managed, publicly traded real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that owns and
operates a high-quality, newer-vintage portfolio of predominantly single-tenant industrial and office properties located in diverse, strategic markets. These
assets are generally leased to creditworthy tenants under long-term net lease agreements with contractual rent escalations. The Company’s fiscal year-end is
December 31.

PKST OP, L.P., our operating partnership (the “Operating Partnership”), owns directly and indirectly all of the Company’s assets. As of June 30, 2024, the
Company owned approximately 91.8% of the outstanding common units of limited partnership interest in the Operating Partnership (“OP Units”).

As of June 30, 2024, the Company’s wholly-owned portfolio comprised 66 properties located in 22 states, which are reported across three segments:
Industrial (19 properties), Office (34 properties), and Other (13 properties).

2.     Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

There have been no significant changes to the Company’s accounting policies since the Company filed its audited financial statements in its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. For further information about the Company’s accounting policies, refer to the Company’s filed
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared by management on the accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information as contained in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), and in conjunction with rules and regulations of the SEC. Certain
information and footnote disclosures required for annual financial statements have been condensed or excluded pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.
Accordingly, the unaudited consolidated financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial
statements. The unaudited consolidated financial statements include accounts and related adjustments, which are, in the opinion of management, of a normal
recurring nature and necessary for a fair presentation of the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim period. Operating
results for the six months ended June 30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2024. These
unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. In addition, see the risk factors identified in the “Risk Factors” section of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include all accounts of the Company, the Operating Partnership, and its consolidated subsidiaries.
Intercompany transactions are shown on the consolidated statements if and to the extent required pursuant to GAAP. With the exception of the Office Joint
Venture (defined below), each property-owning entity is a wholly-owned subsidiary which is a special purpose entity (“SPE”).

Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments: Industrial, Office, and Other. See Note 14, Segment Reporting, for details regarding each of the Company’s
segments.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the unaudited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could materially differ from those
estimates.
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PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2024

(Unaudited; dollars in thousands unless otherwise noted and excluding per share amounts)

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of outstanding common shares plus the potential effect of any dilutive securities (e.g. unvested time-based restricted share units,
unvested time-based restricted shares (together, “Unvested Restricted Shares”), OP Units, etc.), using the more dilutive of either the two-class method or the
treasury stock method.

For all periods presented, (a) OP Units were excluded from the dilutive earnings per share computation because they were not dilutive, and (b) using the
treasury stock method, the Unvested Restricted Shares (in the amounts set forth below) were excluded from dilutive earnings per share because the inclusion
would have been anti-dilutive.

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Unvested Restricted Shares 420,964  406,272  445,081  291,607 

Unvested, time-based restricted share units that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends are participating securities and are included in the computation
of earnings per share pursuant to either the two-class method or treasury stock method, as applicable.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is presented on the consolidated balance sheet and consists primarily of reserves that the Company assumed or funded as required by the
applicable governing documents with certain lenders in conjunction with debt financing or transactions. The table below summarizes the Company’s restricted
cash:

Balance as of
June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Cash reserves $ 12,865  $ 7,200 
Restricted lockbox 1,631  2,008 
Total restricted cash $ 14,496  $ 9,208 

Change in Consolidated Financial Statements Presentation

Certain amounts in the prior period consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”). To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet certain
organizational and operational requirements. The Company intends to adhere to these requirements and maintain its REIT status for the current year and
subsequent years. As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to federal income taxes on taxable income that is distributed to shareholders. However,
the Company may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property, and federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable
income, if any. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Company will then be subject to federal income taxes on the taxable income
at regular corporate rates and will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year during
which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) grants the Company relief under certain statutory provisions. Such an event could
materially adversely affect net income and net cash available to pay dividends to shareholders. As of June 30, 2024, the Company satisfied the REIT
requirements.
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Pursuant to the Code, the Company has elected to treat its corporate subsidiary. as a taxable REIT subsidiary (a “TRS”). In general, the TRS may perform
non-customary services for the Company’s tenants and may engage in any real estate or non-real estate-related business. The TRS will be subject to corporate
federal and state income tax.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Changes to GAAP are established by the FASB in the form of an Accounting Standards Update (“ASUs”) to the FASB’s Accounting Standards
Codification. The Company considers the applicability and impact of all ASUs. Other than the ASUs discussed below, the FASB has not recently issued any
other ASUs that the Company expects to be applicable and have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

On November 27, 2023, the FASB issued an ASU to require the disclosure of segment expenses if they are (i) significant to the segment, (ii) regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), and (iii) included in each reported measure of a segment’s profit or loss. Public entities will be
required to provide this disclosure quarterly. In addition, this ASU requires an annual disclosure of the CODM’s title and a description of how the CODM uses
the segment’s profit/loss measure to assess segment performance and to allocate resources. Compliance with these and certain other disclosure requirements
will be required for the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2024, and for subsequent quarterly and annual reports, with
early adoption permitted. The Company continues to evaluate the impact of the guidance and expects to adopt this ASU on its annual report on Form 10-K for
the year ending December 31, 2024.

3.     Real Estate

The following table summarizes the Company’s gross investment in real estate as of:

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Land $ 225,330  $ 231,175 
Building and improvements 1,942,591  1,968,314 
Tenant origination and absorption cost 394,728  402,251 
Construction in progress 1,069  8,371 

Total real estate $ 2,563,718  $ 2,610,111 

Acquisitions of Real Estate

The Company had no acquisitions of real estate during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Dispositions of Real Estate

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company sold five properties for approximately $88.2 million and recognized a net gain of approximately
$9.1 million, detailed in the table below:

Sale Date Segment Location Gross Disposition Price Gain (Loss)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2024
January 31, 2024 Office Johnston, Iowa $ 30,000  $ (17)
March 15, 2024 Other Columbia, Maryland 15,000  5,326 
March 26, 2024 Other Jefferson City, Missouri 26,090  4,690 
March 28, 2024 Other Houston, Texas 8,435  (822)

79,525  9,177 

Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
April 30, 2024 Other Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania 8,650  (57)

8,650  (57)
Total for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 $ 88,175  $ 9,120 
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On January 31, 2024, the Company sold an Office segment property located in Johnston, Iowa to an affiliate of the existing tenant for $30.0 million. In
connection with the sale, the Company issued a one-year $15.0 million promissory note, guaranteed by the tenant, which maintains an investment-grade credit
rating. Because the note does not bear interest, we imputed interest at an annual rate of 5.0% and, therefore, recorded a discount of approximately $0.7 million.
For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recognized $0.3 million of discount amortization related to the imputed interest, which is presented in
“Other income (expenses)” on the consolidated statement of operations. As of June 30, 2024, the balance on the note was approximately $14.6 million, which
is presented in “Other assets” on the consolidated balance sheets.

Real Estate Held for Sale

As of June 30, 2024, one Office segment property met the criteria for classification as held for sale.

The following summary presents the major components of assets and liabilities related to the real estate property held for sale as of June 30, 2024:

ASSETS June 30, 2024
Land $ 508 
Building and improvements 2,533 
Tenant origination and absorption cost 242 
Total real estate 3,283 
Less: accumulated depreciation (574)
Total real estate, net 2,709 
Deferred rent 11 
Deferred leasing costs, net — 
Other assets, net 10 

Total real estate and other assets held for sale $ 2,730 
LIABILITIES

Intangible liabilities, net $ 4 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 88 

Liabilities of real estate assets held for sale $ 92 

Real Estate Impairments

Where indicators of impairment exist, the Company evaluates the recoverability of its real estate assets by comparing the carrying amounts of the assets
to the estimated undiscounted cash flows. When the carrying amounts of the real estate assets are not recoverable based on the estimated undiscounted cash
flows, the Company calculates an impairment charge in the amount the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value of the real estate asset as of the
measurement date.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Company recorded a real estate impairment provision of approximately $1.4 million related to one
Other segment property, which met the criteria for classification as held for sale. The impairment resulted from the estimated selling price of the property,
which impacted the recoverability of the asset.

During the three months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recorded a real estate impairment provision of approximately $6.5 million related to one
Other segment property. The impairment resulted from the potential sale and estimated selling price of the property, which impacted the recoverability of the
asset.

Refer to Note 8. Fair Value Measurements for additional details regarding the fair value measurements used in determining the real estate impairments.
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Real Estate and Acquired Lease Intangibles

The following table summarizes the Company’s allocation of acquired and contributed real estate asset value to in-place lease valuation, tenant
origination and absorption cost, and other intangibles, net of the write-off of intangibles as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
In-place lease valuation (above market) $ 17,203  $ 22,759 
In-place lease valuation (above market) - accumulated amortization (11,724) (16,616)
In-place lease valuation (above market), net 5,479  6,143 

Intangibles - other 32,028  32,028 
Intangibles - other - accumulated amortization (9,226) (8,481)
Intangibles - other, net 22,802  23,547 

Intangible assets, net $ 28,281  $ 29,690 

In-place lease valuation (below market) $ (42,116) $ (42,534)
Land leasehold interest (above market) (3,072) (3,072)
Intangibles - other (above market) (152) (187)
In-place lease valuation & land leasehold interest - accumulated amortization 30,788  29,770 

Intangible liabilities, net $ (14,552) $ (16,023)

Tenant origination and absorption cost $ 394,728  $ 402,251 
Tenant origination and absorption cost - accumulated amortization (229,289) (221,786)

Tenant origination and absorption cost, net $ 165,439  $ 180,465 

The amortization of the intangible assets and other leasing costs for the respective periods is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Above and below market leases, net $ (372) $ (291) $ (631) $ (413)
Tenant origination and absorption cost $ 7,197  $ 10,554  $ 14,647  $ 21,390 
Ground lease amortization (below market) $ (96) $ (96) $ (193) $ (192)
Other leasing costs amortization $ 473  $ 477  $ 971  $ 1,038 

4.    Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

Office Joint Venture

On August 26, 2022, the Company completed the sale of a majority interest in a 41-property office portfolio (the “Initial JV Office Portfolio”) for a sale
price of approximately $1.1 billion. On December 27, 2022, the Company completed a companion sale of a majority interest in a five-property office portfolio
(“Companion JV Office Portfolio”, and together with the Initial JV Office Portfolio, the “JV Office Portfolio”) for a sale price of approximately $170.4 million.

In connection with the sale of the JV Office Portfolio, the Company, through its subsidiary GRT VAO OP, LLC (“GRT VAO Sub”), invested a combined
$184.2 million for a 49% interest in Galaxy REIT LLC, a joint venture through which it owns indirectly an approximate 49% interest in the JV Office Portfolio
(the “Office Joint Venture”). The Office Joint Venture is managed and accounted for by RVMC Capital LLC, an affiliate of Workspace Property Trust (the
“Managing Member”). The Managing Member of the Office Joint Venture has general authority to manage the operations of the Office Joint Venture. The
Managing Member also has day-to-day management authority over the Office Joint Venture, subject to certain major decision rights held by another minority
interest holder. The Managing Member may be removed from its management positions upon the occurrence of specified events. GRT VAO Sub has approval
rights over certain major decisions regarding actions by the Office Joint Venture, including certain fundamental decisions that the Office Joint Venture may
approve. GRT VAO Sub’s obligation is generally limited to its initial contribution. GRT VAO Sub is not obligated to make any additional capital contributions
beyond its initial capital contribution.

The Office Joint Venture, through various subsidiary borrowers, obtained acquisition financing for the Initial JV Office Portfolio comprised of (a) a
$736.0 million mortgage loan (the “Initial JV Office Mortgage Loan”), and (b) a $194.8 million mezzanine loan (the “JV Office Mezzanine Loan”, and
together with the JV Office Initial Mortgage Loan, the “Initial Office JV Loans”). The Initial Office JV Loans have a maturity date of September 9, 2024
(subject to a one-year extension option), and interest rates of (i) for the Initial JV Office Mortgage Loan, Term SOFR (1-month) (with a 4.4% interest rate cap
on SOFR) + 3.885% (subject to a 0.25% increase during the extension term), and (ii) for the JV Office Mezzanine Loan, Term SOFR (1-month) (with a 4.4%
interest rate cap on SOFR) + 6.824% (subject to a 0.25% increase during the extension term).

The Office Joint Venture, through various subsidiary borrowers, also obtained acquisition financing for the Companion JV Office Portfolio, comprised of
a $142.1 million mortgage loan, having a maturity date of January 6, 2025 (subject to a one-year extension option), and an interest rate of Term SOFR (1-
month with a 4% interest rate cap on SOFR) + 4.50% (subject to a 0.25% increase during each extension term) (the “Companion Office JV Loan”, and together



with the Initial Office JV Loans, the “Office JV Loans”).

The Office Joint Venture may call capital from its members (the “Capital Calls”). GRT VAO Sub is not obligated to fund any Capital Calls. In accordance
with the Office Joint Venture’s governing documents, another member of the Office Joint Venture (the “Funding Member”) may make interest bearing loans to
GRT VAO Sub in the principal amounts of GRT VAO Sub’s portions of the Capital Calls (the “Shortfall Loans”), the proceeds of which Shortfall Loans are
treated as a funding of GRT VAO Sub’s portions of the Capital Calls. The Shortfall Loans are non-recourse to GRT VAO Sub and its affiliates and shall be
repaid to the Funding Member solely out of (i) any distributions to which GRT VAO Sub is otherwise entitled under the Office Joint Venture’s governing
documents and (ii) the proceeds from certain transfers which results in GRT VAO Sub and its affiliates no longer owning a direct or indirect equity interest in
the Office Joint Venture.

The Company has not guaranteed any debt obligations and has not otherwise committed to providing financial support in respect of the Office JV Loans.
In addition, the Company does not anticipate receiving any near-term cash flow distributions from the assets that are part of the JV Office Portfolio.
Considering the Company’s limited economic exposure to the Office Joint Venture, the Company excludes interests in the assets in the Office Joint Venture
from operating data.

The interests discussed above are deemed to be variable interests in variable interest entities (“VIE”) and based on an evaluation of the variable interests
against the criteria for consolidation, the Company determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of the investment, as the Company does not have power to
direct the activities of the entities that most significantly affect their performance. As such, the interest in the VIE is recorded using the equity method of
accounting in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Under the equity method, the investments in the unconsolidated entities are stated at cost
and adjusted for the Company’s share of net earnings or losses and reduced by distributions. Equity in earnings of real estate ventures is generally recognized
based on the allocation of cash distributions upon liquidation of the investment at book value in accordance with the operating agreements. The Company
records the net earnings or losses on investment on a one quarter lag, as applicable. The Company's maximum exposure to losses associated with its
unconsolidated investments is primarily limited to its initial contribution in the investments.

Summary of Investment in Office Joint Venture Activity

In the third quarter of 2023, the Company recorded a complete write-off of its remaining investment balance in the Office Joint Venture. Subsequent to
the write-off of the Office Joint Venture, the Company no longer records any equity income or losses.

During the second quarter of 2024, the Office Joint Venture initiated two Capital Calls, of which GRT VAO Sub’s proportionate share was approximately
$3.1 million. The Company did not fund these Capital Calls. The Funding Member made a Shortfall Loan to GRT VAO Sub, which was treated as funding GRT
VAO Sub’s portion of these Capital Calls by the Capital Call amounts. As of June 30, 2024, the cumulative Shortfall Loans made to GRT VAO Sub total
approximately $5.0 million. The cumulative Shortfall Loans have a net zero impact on the Company’s investment in the Office Joint Venture.

In accordance with Regulation S-X 10-01(b)(1), the Company presents the summarized interim financial statements of the Office Joint Venture below.

The table below presents the condensed balance sheet for the unconsolidated Office Joint Venture:
June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 

Assets
Real estate properties, net $ 1,074,121  $ 1,092,312 
Other assets 261,401  299,045 

Total Assets $ 1,335,522  $ 1,391,357 

Liabilities
Mortgages payable, net $ 1,071,265  $ 1,067,005 
Other liabilities 85,370  92,919 

Total Liabilities $ 1,156,635  $ 1,159,924 

(1) Amounts are as of March 31, 2024 due to the recording of the Office Joint Venture’s activity on a one quarter lag.

(2) Amounts are as of September 30, 2023 due to the recording of the Office Joint Venture’s activity on a one quarter lag.

The table below presents condensed statements of operations of the unconsolidated Office Joint Venture:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023 

Total revenues $ 43,181  $ 49,917  $ 93,387  $ 94,706 
Expenses:

Operating expenses (17,062) (16,611) (36,520) (32,433)
General and administrative (2,169) (2,174) (3,295) (3,655)
Depreciation and amortization (15,647) (18,411) (45,557) (33,185)
Interest expense (28,902) (49,990) (60,719) (92,982)
Other income, net 479  1,531  741  1,883 

Total Expenses (63,301) (85,655) (145,350) (160,372)

Net Loss $ (20,120) $ (35,738) $ (51,963) $ (65,666)

(1) Amounts represent the period of January 1 to March 31 due to the recording of the Office Joint Venture’s activity on a one quarter lag.

(2) Amounts represent the period of October 1 to March 31 due to the recording of the Office Joint Venture’s activity on a one quarter lag.

(1) (2)

(1) (1) (2) (2)
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5.     Debt

As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company’s consolidated debt consisted of the following:

Carrying Value

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Contractual Interest 

Rate 
Loan

Maturity
Effective Interest

Rate
Secured Debt

Pepsi Bottling Ventures Mortgage Loan $ 17,236  $ 17,439  3.69% October 2024 3.80%
AIG Loan II 105,576  119,953  4.15% November 2025 4.84%
BOA II Loan 250,000  250,000  4.32% May 2028 4.14%
AIG Loan 91,187  92,444  4.96% February 2029 5.12%
Highway 94 Mortgage Loan —  11,709  —% (4) — (4) —%

Total Secured Debt 463,999  491,545 
Unsecured Debt

Revolving Loan 400,000  400,000  SOF Rate + 1.30% (5) January 2026 (6) 7.11%
2025 Term Loan 400,000  400,000  SOF Rate + 1.25% (5) December 2025 7.00%
2026 Term Loan 150,000  150,000  SOF Rate + 1.25% (5) April 2026 6.84%

Total Unsecured Debt 950,000  950,000 
Total Debt 1,413,999  1,441,545 

Unamortized Deferred Financing Costs and
Discounts, net (5,482) (5,622)

Total Debt, net $ 1,408,517  $ 1,435,923 

(1) Including the effect of the interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of $750.0 million (maturing on July 1, 2025), the weighted average interest rate as of June 30, 2024 was
4.20% for both the Company’s fixed-rate and variable-rate debt combined and 3.77% for the Company’s fixed-rate debt only.

(2) Reflects the loan maturity dates as of June 30, 2024.

(3) The Effective Interest Rate for the Company's unsecured debt is calculated on a weighted average basis and is inclusive of the Company's $750 million floating to fixed interest rate swaps
maturing on July 1, 2025.

(4) Highway 94 Mortgage loan was paid off in full in March 2024 in connection with the tenant’s closing on exercise of its purchase option for the Other segment property located in Jefferson City,
Missouri.

(5) The applicable SOFR as of June 30, 2024 (calculated per the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) was 5.31%.

(6) During the quarter ended June 30, 2024, the Company exercised its option to extend the Revolving Loan Maturity Date (as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) to
January 31, 2026.

(7) On July 25, 2024, the Company entered into an Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, which modified, among other terms, maturity dates of certain loans,
the interest rate, the maximum commitment amount under the Revolving Loan, and certain terms related to debt covenants. Refer to Note 16. Subsequent Events for further details.

(1) (2) (3)

(7)
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Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

As of June 30, 2024, the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 30, 2019 (as amended by the First Amendment to the Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of October 1, 2020 (the “First Amendment”), the Second Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement dated as of December 18, 2020 (the “Second Amendment”), the Third Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of July 14, 2021 (the “Third Amendment”), the Fourth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 28, 2022
(the “Fourth Amendment”), the Fifth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of September 28, 2022 (the “Fifth
Amendment”), the Sixth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of November 30, 2022 (the “Sixth Amendment”), and
the Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of March 21, 2023 (the “Seventh Amendment”), and together with the First
Amendment, the Second Amendment, the Third Amendment, the Fourth Amendment, the Fifth Amendment, and the Sixth Amendment, the “Second Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement”), with KeyBank National Association (“KeyBank”) as administrative agent, and a syndicate of lenders, provided the Operating
Partnership, as the borrower, with a $1.3 billion credit facility consisting of (i) a $750.0 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving
Credit Facility”), under which the Operating Partnership has drawn $400.0 million (the “Revolving Loan”) maturing on January 31, 2026 (pursuant to the
Company’s exercise of its option to extend the Revolving Maturity Date, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, of June 30, 2024
to January 31, 2026), (ii) a $400.0 million senior unsecured term loan maturing in December 2025 (the “2025 Term Loan”), and (iii) a $150.0 million senior
unsecured term loan maturing in April 2026 (the “2026 Term Loan” and together with the Revolving Credit Facility and the 2025 Term Loan, the “KeyBank
Loans”). The Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also provides the option, subject to obtaining additional commitments from lenders and certain
other customary conditions, to increase the commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility, to increase the existing term loans and/or incur new term loans
by up to an additional $1.0 billion in the aggregate. As of June 30, 2024, the available undrawn capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility was $172.1
million.

On July 25, 2024, the Company entered into an Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, which modified, among
other terms, maturity dates of certain loans, the interest rate, the maximum commitment amount under the Revolving Loan, and certain terms related to debt
covenants. Refer to Note 16. Subsequent Events for further details.

Debt Covenant Compliance

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s mortgage loans and the KeyBank Loans, the Operating Partnership, in consolidation with the Company, is subject
to certain loan compliance covenants. As of June 30, 2024, there have been no significant changes in the Company’s debt covenants from what was disclosed in
the Company’s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants as of June 30, 2024.

Pursuant to the Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, as previously mentioned, certain terms related to debt
covenants were modified as of July 25, 2024. Refer to Note 16. Subsequent Events for further details.

6.     Interest Rate Contracts

Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both business operations and economic conditions. The Company manages economic risks,
including interest rate, liquidity, and credit risk primarily by managing the amount, sources, and duration of debt funding and the use of derivative financial
instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into interest rate hedging instruments (collectively, “Interest Rate Swaps”) to provide greater predictability in
interest expense by protecting against potential increases in floating interest rates and allow for more precise budgeting, financial planning and forecasting.
Interest Rate Swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable amounts from a counterparty in exchange for making fixed-rate payments
over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. The Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

Derivative Instruments
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As of June 30, 2024, the Company has Interest Rate Swaps in place to hedge the variable cash flows associated with its variable-rate debt (which, as of
June 30, 2024, consists of the KeyBank Loans). The Interest Rate Swaps are cross-defaulted to other indebtedness of the Operating Partnership, if that
indebtedness exceeds certain thresholds. The change in the fair value of the Interest Rate Swaps designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges is initially
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) and is subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted
transaction affects earnings. Amounts reported in AOCI related to Interest Rate Swaps will be reclassified to interest expense as interest payments are made on
the Company's variable-rate debt.

The following table sets forth a summary of the Interest Rate Swaps at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

Fair Value Current Notional Amounts

Derivative Instrument
Effective

Date
Maturity

Date
Interest Strike

Rate June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets
Interest Rate Swap 3/10/2020 7/1/2025 0.83% $ 6,220  $ 7,891  $ 150,000  $ 150,000 
Interest Rate Swap 3/10/2020 7/1/2025 0.84% 4,137  5,250  100,000  100,000 
Interest Rate Swap 3/10/2020 7/1/2025 0.86% 3,089  3,915  75,000  75,000 
Interest Rate Swap 7/1/2020 7/1/2025 2.82% 2,736  2,924  125,000  125,000 
Interest Rate Swap 7/1/2020 7/1/2025 2.82% 2,184  2,331  100,000  100,000 
Interest Rate Swap 7/1/2020 7/1/2025 2.83% 2,181  2,327  100,000  100,000 
Interest Rate Swap 7/1/2020 7/1/2025 2.84% 2,163  2,304  100,000  100,000 

Total $ 22,710  $ 26,942  $ 750,000  $ 750,000 

(1) The Company records all derivative instruments on a gross basis in the consolidated balance sheets, and accordingly there are no offsetting amounts that net assets against liabilities. As of
June 30, 2024, derivatives in an asset or liability position are included in the line item “Other assets” or “Interest rate swap liability”, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets at fair
value.

The following table sets forth the impact of the Interest Rate Swaps on the consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented:

Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023

Interest Rate Swaps in Cash Flow Hedging Relationship:
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in AOCI on derivatives $ (8,954) $ (10,238)
Amount reclassified from AOCI into earnings under “Interest expense” $ 13,123  $ 10,531 
Total interest expense presented in the consolidated statement of operations in which the effects of cash flow hedges are recorded $ 31,994  $ 33,082 

During the twelve months subsequent to June 30, 2024, the Company estimates that an additional $22.7 million of its income will be recognized from
AOCI into earnings.

As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were no Interest Rate Swaps in a liability position. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the
Company is not required to post collateral related to these agreements.

As of July 25, 2024, in connection with the Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, the Company has entered into
certain Interest Rate Swaps, in the form of forward, floating to fixed rate interest swaps. Refer to Note 16. Subsequent Events for further details.

 (1)
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7.     Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Interest payable $ 17,892  $ 17,073 
Prepaid tenant rent 6,901  9,710 
Deferred compensation 9,686  9,661 
Real estate taxes payable 3,482  5,165 
Property operating expense payable 2,205  4,469 
Accrued construction in progress —  1,183 
Accrued tenant improvements 2,800  551 
Other liabilities 22,004  30,417 

Total $ 64,970  $ 78,229 

8.     Fair Value Measurements

The Company is required to disclose fair value information about all financial instruments, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value, whether or
not recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company measures and discloses the estimated fair value of financial assets and liabilities utilizing a
fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about
market participant assumptions. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels, as follows: (i) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(“Level 1”); (ii) significant other observable inputs (“Level 2”), which can include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, as well as
inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted
intervals; and (iii) significant unobservable inputs (“Level 3”), which are typically based on an entity’s own assumptions, since there is little, if any, related
market activity.

In instances in which the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the entire fair
value measurement is calculated based on the lowest level of the fair value hierarchy that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The
Company's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to
the asset or liability. There were no transfers between the levels in the fair value hierarchy between the periods ending December 31, 2023 and June 30, 2024.

Recurring Measurements

The following table sets forth the assets and liabilities that the Company measures at fair value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value
hierarchy as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

Assets/(Liabilities) Total Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
June 30, 2024
Interest Rate Swap Asset $ 22,710  $ —  $ 22,710  $ — 
Mutual Funds Asset $ 7,610  $ 7,610  $ —  $ — 

December 31, 2023
Interest Rate Swap Asset $ 26,942  $ —  $ 26,942  $ — 
Mutual Funds Asset $ 7,148  $ 7,148  $ —  $ — 
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Nonrecurring Measurement - Real Estate Impairment

The following table is a summary of the quantitative fair value information for the two impaired real estate assets for the six months ended June 30, 2024.
The Company used the estimated selling prices less estimated costs to sell based on selling agreements with potential buyers, which the Company considered
as a Level 2 measurement within the fair value hierarchy:

Range of Inputs
Unobservable Inputs Other segment
Estimated selling price less cost to sell (per square foot) $63.00 - $134.00

Nonrecurring Measurement - Goodwill Impairment

The Company’s goodwill has an indeterminate life and is not amortized. Goodwill is tested for impairment on October 1st of each year for each reporting
unit, as applicable, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill is more likely than not impaired. The Company performs a
qualitative assessment to determine whether a potential impairment of goodwill exists prior to quantitatively estimating the fair value of each relevant reporting
unit. If an impairment exists, the Company recognizes an impairment of goodwill based on the excess of the reporting unit’s carrying value compared to its fair
value, up to the amount of goodwill for that reporting unit.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Company sold three properties within the Other segment for $49.5 million. As a result of the sales,
the Company performed a quantitative assessment to estimate the fair value in the Other reporting unit. Based on the results, the Company concluded that it
was more likely than not that the fair value of the Other reporting unit was less than the carrying amount. Thus, the Company recorded a $4.6 million
impairment of the goodwill allocated to the Other reporting unit.

During the three months ended June 30, 2024, the Company sold one property within the Other segment for $8.7 million. As a result of the sale, the
Company performed a quantitative assessment to estimate the fair value in the Other reporting unit. Based on the results, the Company concluded that it was
more likely than not that the fair value of the Other reporting unit was greater than the carrying amount. Thus, the Company recorded no impairment of the
goodwill allocated to the Other reporting unit.

The following is a summary of the quantitative fair value information used in the goodwill impairment calculation.

The Company estimates the fair value of the real estate in the Other segment by using the discounted cash flow method, which the Company considered
as Level 3 measurements within the fair value hierarchy:

Range of Inputs
Unobservable Inputs Reporting Unit: Other
Market rent per square foot $5.00 - $27.50
Discount rate 7.25% - 15.00%
Terminal capitalization rate 6.25% - 9.50%
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The Company estimated the fair value of the mortgage loans encumbering assets within the Other segment as described in the Financial Instruments
Disclosed at Fair Value section below. As part of the nonrecurring fair value measurement of secured debt within the goodwill impairment analysis, the
Company determined that current borrowing rates available to the Company for debt instruments with similar terms and maturities ranged from 3.69% to
7.90%. The Company considered these inputs as Level 2 measurements within the fair value hierarchy. For the remaining assets and liabilities included within
the goodwill impairment calculation, the Company determined that amounts within the consolidated financial statements approximated fair value.

As of June 30, 2024, the Company’s remaining goodwill balance was $74.1 million, of which $68.4 million was allocated to the Industrial segment and
$5.7 million was allocated to the Other segment. Refer to Note 14, Segment Reporting, for allocation of goodwill presented for each segment.

Financial Instruments at Fair Value

Financial instruments as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consisted of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities, and consolidated debt, as defined in Note 5, Debt. With the exception of the secured debt in the table below, the amounts of the
financial instruments presented in the consolidated financial statements substantially approximate their fair value as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

The fair value of the secured debt in the table below is estimated by discounting each loan’s principal balance over the remaining term of the loan using
current borrowing rates available to the Company for debt instruments with similar terms and maturities. The Company determined that the secured debt
valuation in its entirety is classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the fair value is based on current pricing for debt with similar terms as the in-place
debt.

  June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
  Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value 
BOA II Loan $ 222,773  $ 250,000  $ 220,730  $ 250,000 
AIG Loan II 98,830  105,576  115,340  119,953 
AIG Loan 84,820  91,187  92,444  92,444 
Pepsi Bottling Ventures Mortgage Loan 17,236  17,236  17,439  17,439 
Highway 94 Mortgage Loan —  —  11,709  11,709 
Total Secured Debt $ 423,659  $ 463,999  $ 457,662  $ 491,545 

(1) The carrying values do not include the debt premium/(discount) or deferred financing costs as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. See Note 5, Debt, for details.

9.     Equity

Common Equity

On April 13, 2023, the Company listed its common shares on the New York Stock Exchange (the “Listing”).

As of June 30, 2024, there were 36,370,740 common shares outstanding.

ATM Program

In August 2023, the Company entered into an at-the-market equity offering (the “ATM”) pursuant to which the Company may sell common shares up to
an aggregate purchase price of $200.0 million. The Company may sell such shares in amounts and at times to be determined by the Company from time to
time, but the Company has no obligation to sell any of such shares. Actual sales, if any, will depend on a variety of factors to be determined by us from time to
time, including, among other things, market conditions, the trading price of the Company’s common shares, and the Company’s determinations of its capital
needs and the appropriate sources of funding. As of June 30, 2024, the Company has not sold any shares under the ATM program.

(1) (1)
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Issuance of Restricted Shares - Long-Term Incentive Plan

On April 5, 2023, the Compensation Committee of the Board approved the Peakstone Realty Trust Second Amended and Restated Employee and Trustee
Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Initial Plan”) which provides for the grant of share-based awards to the Company’s non-employee trustees, full-time
employees, executive officers and certain persons who perform bona fide consulting or advisory services for the Company or any affiliate of the Company. At
the Company’s annual meeting of shareholders on June 18, 2024, the Company’s shareholders approved a First Amendment to the Initial Plan (as amended, the
“Plan”), which increased the aggregate number of common shares of beneficial interest of the Company that may be issued under awards pursuant to the
“Plan” by 1,285,700 shares.

Awards granted under the Plan may consist of stock options, restricted share units and restricted shares (together, “Restricted Shares”), share appreciation
rights, distribution equivalent rights, profit interests in the Operating Partnership, and other equity-based awards.

The share-based awards are measured at fair value at issuance and recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period. The maximum number of
shares authorized under the Plan is 2,063,478 shares. As of June 30, 2024, 903,556 common shares remained for issuance pursuant to awards granted under the
Plan.

As of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, there was $10.3 million and $13.2 million, respectively, of unrecognized compensation expense remaining, which
vests between six months and approximately 2.5 years.

Total compensation expense related to Restricted Shares for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 was approximately $2.2 million and
$4.0 million, respectively. Total compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 was approximately $3.8 million and $6.6
million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the activity of unvested Restricted Shares for the periods presented:

Number of Unvested Restricted Shares
Weighted-Average Grant Date Fair Value per

Share
Balance at December 31, 2022 161,501 

  Granted 166,321  $ 56.53 
  Forfeited (485) $ 63.70 
  Vested (167,784) $ 69.02 
Balance at December 31, 2023 159,553 

  Granted 536,578  $ 11.61 
  Forfeited (1,735) $ 44.50 
  Vested (69,168) $ 27.25 
Balance as of June 30, 2024 625,228 

(1)    Total shares vested include (4,875) common shares that were withheld (i.e., forfeited) by employees during the six months ended June 30, 2024 to satisfy minimum statutory tax withholding
requirements associated with the vesting of Restricted Shares.

10.     Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests are OP Units owned by previously affiliated and unaffiliated third parties.

As of June 30, 2024, assuming OP Units were converted to common shares, noncontrolling interests would constitute approximately 8.2% of total shares
outstanding and 8.1% of weighted-average shares outstanding.

As of June 30, 2024, the limited partners of the Operating Partnership owned approximately 3.2 million OP Units, which were issued to previously
affiliated parties and unaffiliated third parties in exchange for the contribution of certain properties to the Company and in connection with the Self-
Administration Transaction, and approximately 0.02 million OP Units were issued unrelated to property contributions.

(1)
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All limited partners of the Operating Partnership have the right (the “Exchange Right”) to redeem their OP Units, pursuant to the limited partnership
agreement and applicable contribution agreement, at an exchange price equal to the value of an equivalent number of common shares (“Share Value”). The
Operating Partnership is obligated to satisfy the Exchange Right for cash equal to the Share Value unless the Company, as the general partner of the Operating
Partnership, in its sole and absolute discretion, elects to directly (i) purchase the OP units for cash equal to the Share Value or (ii) purchase the limited partner’s
OP Units by issuing common shares of the Company for the OP Units, subject to certain transfer and ownership limitations included in the Company’s charter
and the limited partnership agreement.

The following summarizes the activity for noncontrolling interests recorded as equity for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and year ended
December 31, 2023:

Six Months Ended June 30,
2024

Year Ended December 31,
2023

Beginning balance $ 91,629  $ 174,655 
Reclass of noncontrolling interest subject to redemption —  10 
Exchange of noncontrolling interest (486) (27,169)
Reclass of redeemable non-controlling interest —  3,801 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (1,447) (2,989)
Allocated distributions to noncontrolling interests subject to redemption —  (728)
Allocated net income (loss) 112  (54,555)
Allocated other comprehensive income (loss) (337) (1,396)
Ending balance $ 89,471  $ 91,629 

Redemption of OP units from Self-Administration Transaction

In connection with the Self-Administration Transaction, Griffin Capital, LLC (“GC LLC”), an entity controlled by our former Executive Chairman, Kevin
A. Shields, and an affiliate of the sponsor of our predecessor, Griffin Capital Essential Asset REIT, Inc. (our “Predecessor”) and Griffin Capital Company, LLC
(“GCC LLC”), received OP units (approximately 2.7 million taking into effect the 9 to 1 reverse split) as consideration in exchange for the sale to our
Predecessor of the advisory, asset management and property management business of Griffin Capital Real Estate Company, LLC (n/k/a PKST Management
Company, LLC, the “Management Company”). GC LLC assigned approximately 50% of the OP units received in connection with the Self-Administration
Transaction to then participants in GC LLC’s long-term incentive plan. Mr. Shields is the plan administrator of such long-term incentive plan.

As previously disclosed, certain of our current and former employees and executive officers, including Michael Escalante, our Chief Executive Officer,
and Javier Bitar, our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, were employed by affiliates of GC LLC prior to the Self-Administration Transaction and are
therefore participants in a GC LLC ‘s long term incentive plan that made grants to such participants in connection with services rendered prior to the Self-
Administration Transaction. Participants in GC LLC’s long-term incentive plan, including Messrs. Escalante and Bitar, are entitled to receive distributions from
the long-term incentive plan in the form of either cash, common shares, or other property, or a combination thereof, as elected by the plan administrator.

The Listing required that certain awards under GC LLC’s long-term incentive plan be settled during the fourth quarter 2023 and in four annual
installments thereafter, unless waived or modified.

On December 15, 2023, GC LLC settled the first of such installments by electing to redeem 209,954 OP units, and we satisfied such redemption request
with our common shares.

If GC LLC elects to redeem additional OP units for further installments, we intend to satisfy such redemption request with our common shares. Any
future redemption of OP units and distribution of common shares would have no economically dilutive effect on our common shareholders.
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11.     Related Party Transactions

Summarized below are the related party transaction costs receivable and payable as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

Incurred for the Six Months Ended Payable as of
June 30, June 30, December 31,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Expensed

Costs advanced by related party $ —  $ 35  $ —  $ — 
Office rent and related expenses 336  695  —  — 

Other
Distributions 1,147  1,760  573  573 

Total $ 1,483  $ 2,490  $ 573  $ 573 

Office Sublease

The Company and the Operating Partnership are parties to a sublease agreement dated March 25, 2022 with GCC, as amended, (the “El Segundo
Sublease”) for the building located at 1520 E. Grand Ave, El Segundo, CA (the “Building”) which is the location of the Company’s corporate headquarters and
where the Company conducts day-to-day business. The Building is part of a campus that contains other buildings and parking (the “Campus”). The El Segundo
Sublease also entitles the Company to use certain common areas on the Campus. The Campus is owned by GCPI, LLC (“GCPI”), and the Building is master
leased by GCPI to GCC. GCC is the sublessor under the El Segundo Sublease. The Company’s former Executive Chairman is the Chief Executive Officer and
controls GCC and is also affiliated with GCPI.

On March 1, 2024, the El Segundo sublease was amended to (i) extend its expiration date of the term from June 30, 2024 through June 30, 2026, and (ii)
adjust the monthly base rent from $0.05 million to $0.04 million, effective July 1, 2024, subject to annual escalations of 3%.

As of June 30, 2024, the Company recorded a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for approximately $0.9 million related to the El Segundo Sublease,
which is included in Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Administrative Services Agreement

The Company no longer has in place an administrative services agreement. Prior to the Listing, and in connection with the Self-Administration
Transaction, the Company, Operating Partnership, Predecessor, and Management Company, on the one hand, and GCC LLC and GC LLC, on the other hand,
entered into that certain Administrative Services Agreement dated December 14, 2018 (as amended, the “ASA”), pursuant to which GCC LLC and GC LLC
provided certain operational and administrative services to the Company at cost. As of October 6, 2023, the ASA is terminated. Under the ASA, the Company
paid GCC LLC a monthly amount based on the actual costs anticipated to be incurred by GCC LLC for the provision such of services until such items were
terminated from the ASA. Such costs were reconciled periodically and a full review of the costs was performed at least annually. In addition, the Company
directly paid or reimbursed GCC LLC for the actual cost of any reasonable third-party expenses incurred in connection with the provision of such services.
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12.     Leases

Lessor

The Company, as Lessor, leases industrial and office space to tenants primarily under leases classified as non-cancelable operating leases that generally
contain provisions for contractual base rents plus reimbursement for certain recoverable operating expenses including, without limitation, real estate taxes,
insurance, common area maintenance (“Recoverable Operating Expenses”). Total contractual base rent payments are recognized in rental income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the related lease. Estimated reimbursements from tenants for Recoverable Operating Expenses are recognized in rental income in the
period that the expenses are incurred.

The Company recognized $100.8 million and $112.9 million of lease income related to operating lease payments for the six months ended June 30, 2024
and June 30, 2023, respectively.

The Company's current third-party tenant leases have expirations ranging from 2024 to 2044. The following table (i) sets forth undiscounted cash flows
for future contractual base rents to be received under operating leases as of June 30, 2024, and (ii) excludes estimated reimbursements of Recoverable
Operating Expenses:

As of June 30, 2024
Remaining 2024 $ 92,268 
2025 185,409 
2026 183,202 
2027 170,299 
2028 155,609 
Thereafter 596,178 

Total $ 1,382,965 

Lessee - Ground Leases

As of June 30, 2024, the Company is the tenant (lessee) under (i) three ground leases classified as operating leases, and (ii) two ground leases classified as
financing leases. Each of these ground leases were assigned to the Company as part of its acquisition of the applicable assets and no incremental costs were
incurred for such ground leases. These ground leases are classified as non-cancelable and contain no renewal options.

Lessee - Office Leases

As of June 30, 2024, the Company is the tenant (lessee) under the following two office space leases, each of which is classified as a non-cancelable
operating lease: (i) the El Segundo Sublease described in Note 11, Related Party Transactions, above, and (ii) a lease for its office space in Chicago, Illinois,
which expires on June 29, 2025.

Lessee Summary - Ground Leases and Office Leases

For ground leases and office leases in which the Company is a lessee, the Company incurred costs of approximately $1.9 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2024 and $1.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, which are included in “Property Operating Expense” in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations. Total cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities was $1.1 million for the six months ended June
30, 2024 and $1.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023.
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The following table sets forth the weighted-average for the lease term and the discount rate for the ground leases and office leases in which the Company
is a lessee as of June 30, 2024:

As of June 30, 2024
Lease Term and Discount Rate Operating Financing
Weighted-average remaining lease term in years 75.3 15.5
Weighted-average discount rate 4.98% 3.43%

(1) Because the rate implicit in each of the Company's leases was not readily determinable, the Company used an incremental borrowing rate. In determining the Company's incremental borrowing
rate for each lease, the Company considered recent rates on secured borrowings, observable risk-free interest rates and credit spreads correlating to the Company's creditworthiness, the impact
of collateralization and the term of each of the Company's lease agreements.

Maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:

As of June 30, 2024
Operating Financing

2024 $ 1,054  $ 303 
2025 2,051  365 
2026 1,748  375 
2027 1,527  381 
2028 1,595  386 
Thereafter 248,691  3,070 
Total undiscounted lease payments 256,666  4,880 
Less: imputed interest (212,742) (1,870)
Total lease liabilities $ 43,924  $ 3,010 

13.    Commitments and Contingencies

Capital Expenditures, Leasing, and Tenant Improvement Commitments

As of June 30, 2024, the Company had an aggregate remaining contractual commitment for capital expenditure projects, leasing commissions and tenant
improvements of approximately $13.7 million.

Litigation

From time to time, the Company may become subject to legal and regulatory proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.
The Company is not a party to, nor is the Company aware of any material pending legal proceedings nor is property of the Company subject to any material
pending legal proceedings.

14.    Segment Reporting

The Company reports its results in three reportable segments: Industrial, Office, and Other. The Industrial segment consists of high-quality, well-located
industrial properties with modern specifications. The Office segment includes newer, high-quality office properties. The Other segment consists of vacant and
non-core properties, together with other properties in the same cross-collateralized loan pools.

The Company evaluates performance of each segment based on segment net operating income (“NOI”), which is defined as property revenue less
property expenses. The Company excludes the following from Segment NOI because they are addressed on a corporate level: (i) the Office Joint Venture, (ii)
interest expense, and (iii) general and administrative expenses. Segment NOI is not a measure of operating income or cash flows from operating activities, is
not indicative of cash available to fund cash needs and should not be considered an alternative to cash flows as a measure of liquidity. Not all companies
calculate segment profit measures in the same manner. The Company considers segment NOI to be an appropriate supplemental measure to net income because
it assists both investors and management in understanding the core operations of our properties.

(1)
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The following table presents segment NOI for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Industrial NOI
Total Industrial revenues $ 14,554  $ 13,981  $ 29,387  $ 28,575 
Industrial operating expenses (1,700) (1,661) (4,018) (3,625)
Industrial NOI 12,854  12,320  25,369  24,950 

Office NOI
Total Office revenues 32,991  34,999  65,990  74,188 
Office operating expenses (5,663) (6,076) (11,147) (12,414)
Office NOI 27,328  28,923  54,843  61,774 

Other NOI
Total Other revenues 8,407  13,560  19,802  26,750 
Other operating expenses (3,167) (5,157) (6,964) (10,309)
Other NOI 5,240  8,403  12,838  16,441 

Total NOI $ 45,422  $ 49,646  $ 93,050  $ 103,165 

A reconciliation of net loss to NOI for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to Total NOI
Net (loss) income $ (4,101) $ (452,403) $ 1,369  $ (443,384)
General and administrative expenses 9,116  12,030  18,796  21,758 
Corporate operating expenses to related parties 169  341  336  718 
Real estate impairment provision 6,505  397,373  7,881  397,373 
Depreciation and amortization 22,998  30,472  46,413  61,827 
Interest expense 15,845  16,068  31,994  33,082 
Other income, net (5,167) (2,747) (9,213) (3,959)
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  17,508  —  32,169 
Loss (gain) from disposition of assets 57  9,701  (9,120) (20,909)
Goodwill impairment provision —  —  4,594  — 
Transaction expenses —  21,303  —  24,490 

Total NOI $ 45,422  $ 49,646  $ 93,050  $ 103,165 

The following table presents the Company’s goodwill for each of the segments as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023

Goodwill
Industrial $ 68,372  $ 68,373 
Office —  — 
Other 5,680  10,274 

Total Goodwill $ 74,052  $ 78,647 
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The following table presents the Company’s total real estate assets, net, which includes deductions for accumulated depreciation and amortization and
excludes intangibles, for each segment as of the June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023

Industrial Real Estate, net
Total real estate $ 741,717  $ 741,737 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (164,859) (152,353)
Industrial real estate, net 576,858  589,384 

Office Real Estate, net
Total real estate 1,505,580  1,505,959 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (312,491) (286,136)
Office real estate, net 1,193,089  1,219,823 

Other Real Estate, net
Total real estate 316,421  362,415 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (104,071) (112,063)
Other real estate, net 212,350  250,352 

Total Real Estate, net $ 1,982,297  $ 2,059,559 

Total Real Estate Held for Sale, net
Total real estate $ 3,283  $ 64,289 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (574) (14,636)

Real estate held for sale, net $ 2,709  $ 49,653 

Total asset information by segment is not reported because the Company does not use this measure to assess performance or to make resource allocation
decisions.

15.    Declaration of Dividends and Distributions

On February 21, 2024, the Board declared an all-cash dividend for the first quarter in the amount of $0.225 per common share and an all-cash distribution
in the amount of $0.225 per OP Unit. The Company paid such dividends on April 18, 2024 to shareholders and holders of OP Units of record as of March 29,
2024.

On May 2, 2024, the Board declared an all-cash dividend for the second quarter in the amount of $0.225 per common share and an all-cash distribution in
the amount of $0.225 per OP Unit. The Company paid such dividends on July 18, 2024 to shareholders and holders of OP Units of record as of June 28, 2024.
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16.    Subsequent Events

Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

On July 25, 2024, the Operating Partnership, as “Borrower”, KeyBank and the lending institutions which are party thereto, entered into that certain Eighth
Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Eighth Amendment”), which amends the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement (as amended by the Eighth Amendment, the “Amended Credit Agreement”). The Company and certain of its subsidiaries guarantee the obligations
of the Operating Partnership under the Amended Credit Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Note 16 have the meaning given to them in
the Eighth Amendment or the Amended Credit Agreement, as applicable. The Eighth Amendment provides, in part, the following:

• The Operating Partnership reduced the outstanding principal balance of the 2025 Term Loan from $400.0 million to $210.0 million, and the maturity
date of the reduced 2025 Term Loan was extended to July 25, 2028 (now, the “2028 Term Loan”);

• The maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility was extended by four years from the closing date of the Eighth Amendment to July 25, 2028;

• The maximum commitment amount under the Revolving Credit Facility was reduced from $750.0 million to $547.0 million (calculated as of June 30,
2024);

• The Eighth Amendment also provides the option, subject to obtaining additional commitments from lenders and satisfying certain other customary
conditions, to increase the commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility, to increase the outstanding principal balance under existing term loans
and/or incur new term loans by up to approximately $400.0 million in the aggregate (for a maximum facility size of $1.3 billion).

• The interest rate with respect to drawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility can be based on either SOFR or Base Rate at the Operating
Partnership’s election. At closing of the Eighth Amendment, the Operating Partnership had elected SOFR (interest periods for SOFR may be daily, 1
month or 3 months at the Operating Partnership’s election, with a 0.10% index adjustment in each case (“Applicable SOFR”)). The interest rate with
respect to drawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility that constitute “SOFR Loans” (being all drawn amounts as of June 30, 2024) was
increased by 0.35% from the rate in effect as of June 30, 2024 (such that the interest rate ranges between Applicable SOFR + 1.65% and Applicable
SOFR + 2.55%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio). With respect to any drawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility
that are “Base Rate Loans” (being none as of June 30, 2024), the interest rate was increased by 0.35% from the rate in effect as of June 30, 2024 (such
that the interest rate ranges between Base Rate + 0.65% and Base Rate + 1.55%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio);

• The interest rate with respect to the 2028 Term Loan can be based on either SOFR or Base Rate at the Operating Partnership’s election. At closing of
the Eighth Amendment, the Operating Partnership had elected SOFR. The interest rate for any portion of the 2028 Term Loan that is a SOFR Loan
(being all outstanding amounts as of June 30. 2024) increased by 0.35%, from the rate in effect as of June 30, 2024 (such that the interest rate ranges
between Applicable SOFR + 1.60% and Applicable SOFR + 2.50%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio). The interest rate for
any portion of the 2028 Term Loan that is a Base Rate Loan (being none as of June 30, 2024) increased by 0.35%, from the rate in effect as of June 30,
2024 (such that the interest rate ranges between Base Rate + 0.60% and Base Rate + 1.50%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio);

• The availability under the Revolving Credit Facility (the “Borrowing Base”) is based, in part, on a stipulated Capitalization Rate for the assets
constituting Pool Properties. Prior to the Eighth Amendment, the Capitalization Rate was 7% for all of the Company’s Pool Properties (without regard
to the type of asset). Pursuant to the Eighth Amendment, the Capitalization Rate for industrial assets is now 6% and the Capitalization Rate for office
assets is now 8%;

• The Borrowing Base was also redefined in the Eighth Amendment such that it is determined as the sum of:
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(Unaudited; dollars in thousands unless otherwise noted and excluding per share amounts)

a. for industrial assets, the lesser of (i) sixty percent (60%) of the value of all Pool Properties that are industrial properties calculated using the
applicable Capitalization Rate (i.e., 6%, as noted above) and the annualized Net Operating Income for the prior quarter from all such Pool
Properties that are industrial properties; or (ii) a loan amount which would provide a modified debt service coverage ratio for the industrial
assets of 1.25:1.00 (based on an imputed interest rate equal to the greater of the 10-year U.S. Treasury rate plus 2.25%, and 5.0%, and
imputed amortization on a 30-year schedule, see definition of Industrial UAP DSCR in the Eighth Amendment); and

b. for office assets, the lesser of (i) fifty percent (50%) of the value of all Pool Properties that are office properties calculated using the
applicable Capitalization Rate (i.e., 8%, as noted above) and the annualized Net Operating Income for the prior quarter from all such Pool
Properties that are office properties; or (ii) a loan amount which would provide a modified debt service coverage ratio for the office assets of
1.45:1.00 (based on an imputed interest rate equal to the greater of the 10-year U.S. Treasury rate plus 2.75%, and 6.5%, and imputed
amortization on a 30-year schedule, see definition of Office UAP DSCR in the Eighth Amendment).

• In connection with the Eighth Amendment, the Operating Partnership has entered into certain Interest Rate Swaps, in the form of forward-starting,
floating to fixed SOFR interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $550.0 million. These swaps become effective July 1, 2025, and mature July 1,
2029 and have the effect of converting SOFR to a weighted average fixed rate of interest payable by the Operating Partnership of 3.58%. These
hedges are in excess of the hedging requirements under the Amended Credit Agreement.

Declaration of Dividends and Distributions

On August 6, 2024, the Board declared an all-cash dividend for the third quarter in the amount of $0.225 per common share and an all-cash distribution in
the amount of $0.225 per OP Unit. Such dividend is payable on or about October 17, 2024 to shareholders and holders of OP Units of record as of September
30, 2024.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” should be read in conjunction with the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto contained in Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Consolidated Financial Statements, and the notes thereto contained in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Overview

Peakstone Realty Trust (“PKST” or the “Company”) is an internally managed, publicly traded real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that owns and
operates a high-quality, newer-vintage portfolio of predominantly single-tenant industrial and office properties located in diverse, strategic markets. These
assets are generally leased to creditworthy tenants under long-term net lease agreements with contractual rent escalations.

PKST OP, L.P., our operating partnership (the “Operating Partnership”) owns, directly and indirectly all of the Company’s assets. As of June 30, 2024, the
Company owned approximately 91.8% of the outstanding common units of limited partnership interest in the Operating Partnership (“OP Units”).

The Company’s wholly-owned portfolio had the following characteristics as of June 30, 2024:

Segment
Number of
Properties

Percentage Leased (based on
rentable square feet)

Weighted Average Lease
Term (WALT) (in years)

Investment Grade % Wtd.
Avg. Based on ABR

Percentage of
ABR

Industrial 19  100.0  % 6.2  58.6  % 26.4  %
Office 34  98.7  % 7.4  60.8  % 60.1  %
Other 13  74.8  % 3.4  40.2  % 13.5  %

Total 66  96.3 % 6.6  57.4 % 100.0 %
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Revenue Concentration

By State:

The percentage of ABR as of June 30, 2024 by state, based on the respective in-place leases, is as follows (dollars in thousands):

State
ABR

(unaudited)
Number of
Properties

Percentage of
ABR

Arizona $ 23,500  7  12.6 %
New Jersey 19,711  5  10.5 
Colorado 16,626  4  8.9 
Ohio 13,285  5  7.1 
Massachusetts 12,486  3  6.7 
California 12,458  2  6.7 
South Carolina 9,853  3  5.3 
Alabama 9,409  2  5.0 
North Carolina 9,159  6  4.9 
Illinois 8,901  3  4.8 
Subtotal $ 135,388  40  72.5 %
All Others 51,616  26  27.5 
Total $ 187,004  66  100.0 %

(1)     “All others” account for less than 4.7% of ABR on an individual state basis.

By Industry:

The percentage of ABR as of June 30, 2024, by industry, based on the respective in-place leases, is as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Industry 
ABR

 (unaudited)
Number of

Lessees
Percentage of

ABR
Capital Goods $ 29,928  14  16.0 %
Consumer Services 21,011  4  11.2 
Materials 17,191  4  9.2 
Food, Beverage & Tobacco 16,761  3  9.0 
Utilities 11,513  2  6.2 
Health Care Equipment & Services 11,339  4  6.1 
Commercial & Professional Services 10,898  6  5.8 
Retailing 9,772  2  5.2 
Technology Hardware & Equipment 9,179  3  4.9 
Diversified Financials 9,129  3  4.9 
Subtotal $ 146,721  45  78.5 %
All Others 40,283  18  21.5 
Total $ 187,004  63  100.0 %

(1)     Industry classification based on the Global Industry Classification Standard.

(2)     “All others” account for less than 4.6% of total ABR on an individual industry basis.

(1)

(1)

(2)
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Top Ten Tenants:

Pursuant to the respective in-place leases, no lessee or property generated more than 6.2% of our ABR as of June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, our top
10 tenants are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Tenant
ABR

(unaudited)
Percentage of

ABR
Keurig Dr. Pepper $ 11,544  6.2 %
Southern Company 9,409  5.0 
LPL 8,701  4.7 
Amazon 8,590  4.6 
Freeport McMoRan 7,867  4.2 
Maxar Technologies 7,723  4.1 
RH 7,487  4.0 
Wyndham Hotels & Resorts 7,392  4.0 
McKesson 6,276  3.4 
Travel & Leisure, Co. 5,928  3.2 
Subtotal $ 80,917  43.4 %
All Others 106,087  56.6 

Total $ 187,004  100.0 %

(1)     “All others” account for less than 2.9% of ABR on an individual tenant basis.

Lease Expirations:

As of June 30, 2024, our lease expirations by year are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year of Lease Expiration 
ABR

(unaudited)
Number of

Leases Approx. Square Feet
Percentage of

ABR
2024 $ 5,667  4  312,000  3.0 %
2025 6,580  5  422,900  3.5 
2026 8,909  3  1,459,100  4.8 
2027 14,374  7  570,700  7.7 
2028 18,977  11  2,027,200  10.1 
2029 42,035  12  2,574,300  22.5 
>2029 90,462  31  8,600,400  48.4 
Vacant —  —  612,600  — 
Total $ 187,004  73  16,579,200  100.0 %

(1)  Expirations that occur on the last day of the month are shown as expiring in the subsequent month.

(1)

(1)
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Results of Operations

Overview

The Company’s long-term objective is to leverage the experience of our team to maximize shareholder value through the ownership and operation of
industrial and select office assets located in strategic markets. We are focused on maintaining a strong balance sheet that enables us to execute multi-channel
investments across the risk and capital spectrum. It is our intention to continue to maximize our balance sheet flexibility through, among other things, free cash
flow generation and the continued execution of our strategic disposition plan. We seek to generate internal and external growth by increasing the cash flow
from our properties and expanding our portfolio by making industrial-focused investments.

Business Environment

The dynamic landscape of the capital markets has caused a shift in the sentiment of real estate investors. The interplay of economic indicators,
geopolitical tensions, and monetary policy adjustments has created an environment where caution prevails. Amidst these challenges, real estate investors appear
to be cautiously optimistic about the potential for a reversal of interest rates by the Federal Reserve which could alleviate the availability and cost of financing,
potentially revitalizing investor confidence.

Industrial trends including onshoring and nearshoring of manufacturing and warehousing operations, the projected increase in U.S. industrial production,
and the continued growth of e-commerce are anticipated to drive sustained demand for industrial real estate. The slowing pace of construction and increasing
resistance from municipalities for new industrial development are limiting industrial supply, which we believe will benefit industrial assets. Also, while
demand has moderated relative to record levels in recent years, it remains steady across most markets and vacancy rates remain low by historic standards.

The office market is undergoing a period of adaptation driven by evolving workplace preferences. While overall demand for office space nationwide has
declined, newer and more modern office buildings, with high walk-scores, immediate access to retail amenities and transportation hubs appear to continue to
attract and retain tenants and achieve top-of-market rental rates.

For a discussion of material trends and uncertainties that have impacted or may impact the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows, see (i) the discussion above, (ii) the risks highlighted in the “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” section of this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, and (iii) the risks highlighted in the “Risk Factors” section of the Company’s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Segment Information

The Company internally evaluates all of the properties and interests therein as three reportable segments: Industrial, Office and Other. The Company
evaluates performance of each segment based on segment net operating income (“NOI”), which is defined as property revenue less property expenses. The
Company excludes the following from segment NOI because they are addressed on a corporate level: (i) the Office Joint Venture, (ii) interest expense, and (iii)
general administrative expenses. Segment NOI is not a measure of operating income or cash flows from operating activities, is not indicative of cash available
to fund cash needs and should not be considered an alternative to cash flows as a measure of liquidity. Not all companies calculate segment profit measures in
the same manner. The Company considers segment NOI to be an appropriate supplemental measure to net income because it assists both investors and
management in understanding the core operations and valuations of our properties.

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to Same Store NOI

Total net income (loss) for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 was $(4.1) million and $(452.4) million, respectively. Total net
income (loss) for the six months ended June 30, 2024, and June 30, 2023 was $1.4 million and $(443.4) million, respectively. The following table reconciles
net income (loss) to Same Store NOI for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 (dollars in thousands). Refer to the NOI and Cash
NOI sections for further details:
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Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to Same Store NOI
Net (loss) income $ (4,101) $ (452,403) $ 1,369  $ (443,384)
General and administrative expenses 9,116  12,030  18,796  21,758 
Corporate operating expenses to related parties 169  341  336  718 
Real estate impairment provision 6,505  397,373  7,881  397,373 
Depreciation and amortization 22,998  30,472  46,413  61,827 
Interest expense 15,845  16,068  31,994  33,082 
Other income, net (5,167) (2,747) (9,213) (3,959)
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  17,508  —  32,169 
Loss (gain) from disposition of assets 57  9,701  (9,120) (20,909)
Goodwill impairment provision —  —  4,594  — 
Transaction expenses —  21,303  —  24,490 
Total NOI $ 45,422  $ 49,646  $ 93,050  $ 103,165 
Same Store Adjustments:
Recently disposed properties 200  (4,744) (2,354) (12,605)
Inducement adjustment —  (49) —  (150)
Corporate related adjustment (25) 23  (42) 24 

Total Same Store NOI $ 45,597  $ 44,876  $ 90,654  $ 90,434 

Same Store Analysis

Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2024 to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2023.

For the three months ended June 30, 2024, our “Same Store” portfolio consisted of 66 properties, encompassing approximately 16.6 million square feet,
and Annualized Base Rent as of June 30, 2024 of $187.0 million. The Company’s “Same Store” portfolio includes properties which were held for the full
period for both periods presented. The following table provides a comparative summary of the results of operations for the 66 “Same Store” properties by
segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 Change Percentage Change

Industrial Same Store NOI
Total Industrial revenues $ 14,554  $ 13,980  $ 574  4 %
Industrial operating expenses (1,700) (1,654) 46  3 %
Industrial NOI 12,854  12,326  528  4 %

Office Same Store NOI
Total Office revenues 33,033  32,594  439  1 %
Office operating expenses (5,692) (5,578) 114  2 %
Office NOI 27,341  27,016  325  1 %

Other Same Store NOI
Total Other revenues 8,359  8,481  (122) (1)%
Other operating expenses (2,957) (2,947) 10  — %
Other NOI 5,402  5,534  (132) (2)%
Total Same Store NOI $ 45,597  $ 44,876  $ 721  2 %

NOI

Total Same Store NOI increased by $0.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023.
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Industrial Same Store NOI increased $0.5 million primarily due to the execution of lease extensions in 2024 and timing of certain expense recoveries.

Office Same Store NOI increased $0.3 million primarily due to a lease commencement in 2024 and timing of certain expense recoveries.

Other Same Store NOI decreased $0.1 million primarily due to a lease expiration in 2023.

Comparison of the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023.

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, our “Same Store” portfolio consisted of 66 properties, encompassing approximately 16.6 million square feet, and
Annualized Base Rent as of June 30, 2024 of $187.0 million. The Company’s “Same Store” portfolio includes properties which were held for the full period for
both periods presented. The following table provides a comparative summary of the results of operations for the 66 “Same Store” properties by segment for the
six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
2024 2023 Change Percentage Change

Industrial Same Store NOI
Total Industrial revenues $ 29,387  $ 28,221  $ 1,166  4 %
Industrial operating expenses (4,018) (3,593) 425  12 %
Industrial NOI 25,369  24,628  741  3 %

Office Same Store NOI
Total Office revenues 65,788  65,470  318  — %
Office operating expenses (11,190) (10,677) 513  5 %
Office NOI 54,598  54,793  (195) — %

Other Same Store NOI
Total Other revenues 16,566  16,887  (321) (2)%
Other operating expenses (5,879) (5,874) 5  — %
Other NOI 10,687  11,013  (326) (3)%
Total Same Store NOI $ 90,654  $ 90,434  $ 220  — %

NOI

Total Same Store NOI increased by $0.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023.

Industrial Same Store NOI increased $0.7 million primarily due to the execution of lease extensions in 2024 and timing of certain expense recoveries.

Office Same Store NOI decreased $0.2 million primarily due to the timing of certain expense recoveries.

Other Same Store NOI decreased $0.3 million primarily due to a lease expiration in 2023.
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Portfolio Analysis

Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2024 to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2023

Net Loss

For the three months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recorded a net loss of $(4.1) million compared to a net loss of $(452.4) million for the three
months ended June 30, 2023. The reasons for the change are discussed below.

The following table reconciles net loss to NOI for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 Change
Percentage

Change
Reconciliation of Net Loss to Total NOI
Net loss $ (4,101) $ (452,403) $ 448,302  (99)%
General and administrative expenses 9,116  12,030  (2,914) (24)%
Corporate operating expenses to related parties 169  341  (172) (50)%
Real estate impairment provision 6,505  397,373  (390,868) (98)%
Depreciation and amortization 22,998  30,472  (7,474) (25)%
Interest expense 15,845  16,068  (223) (1)%
Other income, net (5,167) (2,747) (2,420) 88 %
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  17,508  (17,508) (100)%
Loss from disposition of assets 57  9,701  (9,644) (99)%
Transaction expenses —  21,303  (21,303) (100)%
Total NOI $ 45,422  $ 49,646  $ (4,224) (9)%

The following table provides further detail regarding segment NOI:

Three Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 Change
Percentage

Change
Industrial NOI
Industrial revenues $ 14,554  $ 13,981  $ 573  4 %
Industrial operating expenses (1,700) (1,661) 39  2 %
Industrial NOI 12,854  12,320  534  4 %

Office NOI
Office revenues 32,991  34,999  (2,008) (6)%
Office operating expenses (5,663) (6,076) (413) (7)%
Office NOI 27,328  28,923  (1,595) (6)%

Other NOI
Other revenues 8,407  13,560  (5,153) (38)%
Other operating expenses (3,167) (5,157) (1,990) (39)%
Other NOI 5,240  8,403  (3,163) (38)%

Total NOI $ 45,422  $ 49,646  $ (4,224) (9)%

NOI

Total NOI decreased by $4.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023.

Industrial NOI increased $0.5 million primarily due to two lease extensions and the timing of certain expense recoveries.
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Office NOI decreased $1.6 million primarily due to property dispositions and two lease expirations without renewal, partially offset by two lease
commencements.

Other NOI decreased $3.2 million primarily due to property dispositions.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense decreased $2.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30,
2023, primarily due to elevated employee severance costs and expenses related to vesting of restricted stock units in the prior year.

Corporate Operating Expenses to Related Parties

Corporate operating expenses to related parties decreased $0.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2023 primarily due to the termination of the administrative services agreement in 2023.

Real Estate Impairment

Real estate impairment decreased approximately $390.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June
30, 2023 due to fewer property impairments in the current year.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased by approximately $7.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2023 primarily due to dispositions and impairments.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased approximately $0.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023
primarily due to debt payoffs in 2023 and 2024, partially offset by increased amortization of deferred financing costs due to the credit facility extension in
March 2023 and higher interest rates on unhedged variable debt.

Other Income, Net

The increase in other income, net of $2.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023 is
primarily due to increases in interest income earned from additional cash held in money market accounts.

Net loss From Investment in Unconsolidated Entity

Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity decreased approximately $17.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the
three months ended June 30, 2023 due to the complete write-off of the Company’s investment in the Office Joint Venture as of September 30, 2023. Subsequent
to the write-off, the Company no longer records any equity income or losses.

Loss From Disposition of Assets

Loss from disposition of assets decreased approximately $9.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2023 primarily due to fewer sales.

Transaction Expenses

Transaction expenses decreased by $21.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023
primarily due to the inclusion of Listing related expenses incurred in 2023.
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Comparison of the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023.

Net Income (Loss)

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recorded net income of $1.4 million compared to net loss of $(443.4) million for the six months
ended June 30, 2023. The reasons for the change are discussed below.

The following table reconciles net income (loss) to NOI for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 Change
Percentage

Change
Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to Total NOI
Net income (loss) $ 1,369  $ (443,384) $ 444,753  100 %
General and administrative expenses 18,796  21,758  (2,962) (14)%
Corporate operating expenses to related parties 336  718  (382) (53)%
Real estate impairment provision 7,881  397,373  (389,492) (98)%
Depreciation and amortization 46,413  61,827  (15,414) (25)%
Interest expense 31,994  33,082  (1,088) (3)%
Other income, net (9,213) (3,959) (5,254) 133 %
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  32,169  (32,169) (100)%
Gain from disposition of assets (9,120) (20,909) 11,789  (56)%
Goodwill impairment provision 4,594  —  4,594  100 %
Transaction expenses —  24,490  (24,490) (100)%
Total NOI $ 93,050  $ 103,165  $ (10,115) (10)%

The following table provides further detail regarding segment NOI:

Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 Change
Percentage

Change
Industrial NOI
Industrial revenues $ 29,387  $ 28,575  $ 812  3 %
Industrial operating expenses (4,018) (3,625) 393  11 %
Industrial NOI 25,369  24,950  419  2 %

Office NOI
Office revenues 65,990  74,188  (8,198) (11)%
Office operating expenses (11,147) (12,414) (1,267) (10)%
Office NOI 54,843  61,774  (6,931) (11)%

Other NOI
Other revenues 19,802  26,750  (6,948) (26)%
Other operating expenses (6,964) (10,309) (3,345) (32)%
Other NOI 12,838  16,441  (3,603) (22)%

Total NOI $ 93,050  $ 103,165  $ (10,115) (10)%

NOI

Total NOI decreased by $10.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023.

Industrial NOI increased $0.4 million primarily due to two lease extensions.
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Office NOI decreased $6.9 million primarily due to property dispositions and two lease expirations without renewal, partially offset by two lease
commencements.

Other NOI decreased $3.6 million primarily due to property dispositions and a lease expiration.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense decreased by $3.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30,
2024, primarily due to elevated prior year employee severance costs and expenses related to restricted stock units fully vesting in the prior year.

Corporate Operating Expenses to Related Parties

Corporate operating expenses to related parties decreased $0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June
30, 2023 primarily due to the termination of the administrative services agreement after 2023.

Real Estate Impairment

Real estate impairment decreased approximately $389.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30,
2023 due to fewer property impairments in the current year.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased by approximately $15.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended
June 30, 2023 primarily due to dispositions and impairments in 2023 and 2024.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased approximately $1.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023
primarily due to debt payoffs in 2023 and 2024, partially offset by increased amortization of deferred financing costs due to the credit facility extension in
March 2023.

Other Income, Net

The increase in other income, net of $5.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023 is primarily
due to increases in interest income earned from money market accounts.

Net loss From Investment in Unconsolidated Entity

Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity decreased approximately $32.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2023 due to the complete write-off of the Company’s investment in the Office Joint Venture as of September 30, 2023. Subsequent to
the write-off, the Company no longer records any equity income or losses.

Gain From Disposition of Assets

Gain from disposition of assets decreased approximately $11.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June
30, 2023 primarily due to fewer sales with realized gains.

Goodwill Impairment

Goodwill impairment increased approximately $4.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023
primarily due to the impairment of goodwill related to the Other segment in the first quarter of 2024 compared to no goodwill impairment in the prior period.
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Transaction Expenses

Transaction expenses decreased by $24.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023 primarily
due to the inclusion of Listing related expenses incurred in 2023.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We have established accounting estimates which conform to GAAP. The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. If our judgment or
interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to the various transactions had been different, it is possible that different estimates would have been
applied, thus resulting in a different presentation of the financial statements. Additionally, other companies may use different estimates and assumptions that
may impact the comparability of our financial condition and results of operations to those companies.

There have been no significant changes to the critical accounting policies and estimates during the period covered by this report. For a summary of certain
of our critical accounting policies and estimates, refer to our filed Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and Note 2, Basis of
Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial statements under Item 1 of this report on Form 10-Q.
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Funds from Operations and Adjusted Funds from Operations

Our reported results are presented in accordance with GAAP. We also disclose Funds from Operations (“FFO”) and Adjusted Funds from Operations
(“AFFO”) both of which are non-GAAP financial measures. We believe these two non-GAAP financial measures are useful to investors because they are
widely accepted industry measures used by analysts and investors to compare the operating performance of REITs.

We compute FFO in accordance with the definition adopted by the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(“NAREIT”). FFO is defined as net income or loss computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding extraordinary items, as defined by GAAP, and gains and
losses from sales of depreciable real estate assets, adding back impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate assets, plus real estate related depreciation
and amortization (excluding amortization of deferred financing costs and depreciation of non-real estate assets), and after adjustment for unconsolidated
partnerships, joint ventures and preferred dividends. Because FFO calculations exclude such items as depreciation and amortization of depreciable real estate
assets and gains and losses from sales of depreciable real estate assets (which can vary among owners of identical assets in similar conditions based on
historical cost accounting and useful-life estimates), they facilitate comparisons of operating performance between periods and between other REITs. As a
result, we believe that the use of FFO, together with the required GAAP presentations, provides a more complete understanding of our performance relative to
our competitors and a more informed and appropriate basis on which to make decisions involving operating, financing, and investing activities. It should be
noted, however, that other REITs may not define FFO in accordance with the current NAREIT definition or may interpret the current NAREIT definition
differently than we do, making comparisons less meaningful.

Additionally, we use AFFO as a non-GAAP financial measure to evaluate our operating performance. AFFO excludes non-routine and certain non-cash
items such as revenues in excess of cash received, amortization of share-based compensation net, deferred rent, amortization of in-place lease valuation,
acquisition or investment-related costs, financed termination fee, net of payments received, gain or loss from the extinguishment of debt, unrealized gains
(losses) on derivative instruments, write-off transaction costs and other one-time transactions. We believe that AFFO is a recognized measure of sustainable
operating performance by the REIT industry and is useful in comparing the sustainability of our operating performance with the sustainability of the operating
performance of other real estate companies. Management believes that AFFO is a beneficial indicator of our ongoing portfolio performance and isolates the
financial results of our operations. AFFO, however, is not considered an appropriate measure of historical earnings as it excludes certain significant costs that
are otherwise included in reported earnings. Further, since the measure is based on historical financial information, AFFO for the period presented may not be
indicative of future results.

By providing FFO and AFFO, we present information that assists investors in aligning their analysis with management’s analysis of long-term operating
activities. FFO and AFFO have been revised to include amounts available to both common shareholders and limited partners for all periods presented.

For all of these reasons, we believe the non-GAAP measures of FFO and AFFO, in addition to net income (loss) are helpful supplemental performance
measures and useful to investors in evaluating the performance of our real estate portfolio. However, a material limitation associated with FFO and AFFO is
that they are not indicative of our cash available to fund the payment of dividends since other uses of cash, such as capital expenditures at our properties and
principal payments of debt, are not deducted when calculating FFO and AFFO. The use of AFFO as a measure of long-term operating performance on value is
also limited if we do not continue to operate under our current business plan. FFO and AFFO should not be viewed as a more prominent measure of
performance than net income (loss) and each should be reviewed in connection with GAAP measurements.

Neither the SEC, NAREIT, nor any other applicable regulatory body has opined on the acceptability of the adjustments contemplated to adjust FFO in
order to calculate AFFO and its use as a non-GAAP performance measure. In the future, NAREIT may decide to standardize the allowable exclusions across
the REIT industry, and we may have to adjust the calculation and characterization of this non-GAAP measure.
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Our calculation of FFO and AFFO is presented in the following table for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts):

  Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
  2024 2023 2024 2023
Net income (loss) $ (4,101) $ (452,403) $ 1,369  $ (443,384)
Adjustments:

Depreciation of building and improvements 15,424  19,538  30,988  39,592 
Amortization of leasing costs and intangibles 7,671  11,031  15,618  22,428 
Impairment provision, real estate 6,505  397,373  7,881  397,373 
Equity interest of depreciation of building and improvements - unconsolidated entity —  9,020  —  16,258 
Gain (loss) from disposition of assets, net 57  9,701  (9,120) (20,909)

FFO 25,556  (5,740) 46,736  11,358 
Distribution to redeemable preferred shareholders —  —  —  (2,376)
Preferred units redemption charge —  (4,970) —  (4,970)

FFO attributable to common shareholders and limited partners $ 25,556  $ (10,710) $ 46,736  $ 4,012 
Reconciliation of FFO to AFFO:
FFO attributable to common shareholders and limited partners $ 25,556  $ (10,710) $ 46,736  $ 4,012 
Adjustments:

Revenues in excess of cash received, net (1,819) (2,644) (2,645) (6,927)
Amortization of share-based compensation 2,379  2,626  3,811  5,182 
Deferred rent - ground lease 399  435  815  868 
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments (47) (5) (236) (37)
Amortization of above/(below) market rent, net (372) (291) (631) (413)
Amortization of debt premium/(discount), net 20  83  127  185 
Amortization of ground leasehold interests (97) (97) (194) (193)
Amortization of below tax benefit amortization 372  372  744  740 
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,044  655  2,094  1,929 
Amortization of lease inducements —  49  —  150 
Company’s share of amortization of deferred financing costs- unconsolidated entity —  10,655  —  20,287 
Company’s share of revenues in excess of cash received (straight-line rents) -
unconsolidated entity —  (750) —  (1,576)
Company’s share of amortization of above market rent - unconsolidated entity —  (26) —  (314)
Write-off of transaction costs 69  —  69  32 
Employee separation expense 59  2,042  59  2,042 
Transaction expenses —  21,303  —  24,490 
Preferred units redemption charge —  4,970  —  4,970 
Impairment provision, goodwill —  —  4,594  — 

AFFO available to common shareholders and limited partners $ 27,563  $ 28,667  $ 55,343  $ 55,427 

FFO per share/unit, basic and diluted $ 0.65  $ (0.27) $ 1.18  $ 0.10 

AFFO per share/unit, basic and diluted $ 0.70  $ 0.73  $ 1.40  $ 1.40 

Weighted-average common shares outstanding - basic and diluted shares 36,349,950  35,922,706  36,329,485  35,960,804 
Weighted-average OP Units outstanding 3,215,665  3,528,666  3,217,246  3,502,412 
Weighted-average common shares and OP Units outstanding - basic and diluted
FFO/AFFO 39,565,615  39,451,372  39,546,731  39,463,216 

(1) Represents weighted-average outstanding OP Units that are owned by unitholders other than Peakstone Realty Trust. Represents the noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership.

(1)
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NOI and Cash NOI

Net operating income (“NOI”) is a non-GAAP financial measure calculated as net (loss) income, the most directly comparable financial measure
calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, excluding equity in earnings of our unconsolidated real estate joint ventures, general and administrative
expenses, interest expense, depreciation and amortization, impairment of real estate, gains or losses on early extinguishment of debt, gains or losses on sales of
real estate, investment income or loss and termination income. NOI on a cash basis (“Cash NOI”) is NOI adjusted to exclude the effect of straight-line rent and
amortization of acquired above- and below-market lease intangibles adjustments required by GAAP. We believe that NOI and Cash NOI are helpful to
investors as additional measures of operating performance because we believe they help both investors and management to understand the core operations of
our properties excluding corporate and financing-related costs and non-cash depreciation and amortization. NOI and Cash NOI are unlevered operating
performance metrics of our properties and allow for a useful comparison of the operating performance of individual assets or groups of assets. These measures
thereby provide an operating perspective not immediately apparent from GAAP income from operations or net income. In addition, NOI and Cash NOI are
considered by many in the real estate industry to be useful starting points for determining the value of a real estate asset or group of assets.

Because NOI and Cash NOI exclude depreciation and amortization and capture neither the changes in the value of our properties that result from use or
market conditions, nor the level of capital expenditures and capitalized leasing commissions necessary to maintain the operating performance of our properties,
all of which have real economic effect and could materially impact our results from operations, the utility of NOI and Cash NOI as measures of our
performance is limited. Therefore, NOI and Cash NOI should not be considered as alternatives to net income (loss), as computed in accordance with GAAP.
NOI and Cash NOI may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

Our calculation of each of NOI and Cash NOI is presented in the following table for three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in
thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Net (Loss) Income to Total NOI
Net (loss) income $ (4,101) $ (452,403) $ 1,369  $ (443,384)
General and administrative expenses 9,116  12,030  18,796  21,758 
Corporate operating expenses to related parties 169  341  336  718 
Real estate impairment provision 6,505  397,373  7,881  397,373 
Goodwill impairment provision —  —  4,594  — 
Depreciation and amortization 22,998  30,472  46,413  61,827 
Interest expense 15,845  16,068  31,994  33,082 
Other income, net (5,167) (2,747) (9,213) (3,959)
Net loss from investment in unconsolidated entity —  17,508  —  32,169 
Loss (gain) from disposition of assets 57  9,701  (9,120) (20,909)
Transaction expenses —  21,303  —  24,490 

Total NOI $ 45,422  $ 49,646  $ 93,050  $ 103,165 
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Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Cash NOI Adjustments
Industrial Segment:
Industrial NOI $ 12,854  $ 12,320  $ 25,369  $ 24,950 
Straight-line rents (1,277) (107) (1,881) (224)
Amortization of acquired lease intangibles (96) (96) (191) (190)
Deferred termination income —  —  —  (24)
Industrial Cash NOI 11,481  12,117  23,297  24,512 

Office Segment:
Office NOI 27,328  28,923  54,843  61,774 
Straight-line rents (716) (2,831) (1,405) (7,288)
Amortization of acquired lease intangibles (130) (67) (256) 31 
Deferred ground/Office lease 425  439  859  872 
Other intangible amortization 372  372  745  741 
Inducement amortization —  49  —  150 
Office Cash NOI 27,279  26,885  54,786  56,280 

Other Segment:
Other NOI 5,240  8,403  12,838  16,441 
Straight-line rents 174  294  641  608 
Amortization of acquired lease intangibles (146) (128) (184) (254)
Deferred ground/Office lease (26) (4) (45) (4)
Other Cash NOI 5,242  8,565  13,250  16,791 

Total Cash NOI $ 44,002  $ 47,567  $ 91,333  $ 97,583 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

We believe that cash flow generated from our properties, including proceeds from dispositions, will continue to enable us to fund our normal operating
expenses, regular debt service obligations, capital expenditures, possible acquisitions of, or investments in, assets, and all dividends and distribution
requirements in accordance with applicable REIT requirements in both the short-term and long-term. Furthermore, we expect that cash on hand, borrowings
from our Revolving Credit Facility, proceeds from mortgage financing and other debt, proceeds from the sale of properties, and issuances of equity will provide
other potential sources of capital. To the extent we are not able to secure other potential sources of capital, we will be heavily dependent upon income from
operations and our current financing.

Sources of Liquidity

Cash Resources

As of June 30, 2024, we had approximately $446.8 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand. Our principal source of liquidity is cash flow generated
from our properties, which we expect to remain relatively consistent and adequate to fund our liquidity needs. However, a number of factors could have an
adverse impact, including decreases in occupancy levels and rental rates, the ability and willingness of our tenants to pay rent, the timing and success of our
investment activities, and general financial and economic conditions.

Credit Facility

As of June 30, 2024, pursuant to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with KeyBank National Association, as administrative agent, and a
syndicate of lenders, the Operating Partnership, as the borrower, has been provided with a $1.3 billion credit facility consisting of (i) a $750.0 million senior
unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”), under which the Operating Partnership has drawn $400.0 million (the “Revolving Loan”),
(ii) a $400.0 million senior unsecured term loan maturing in December 2025 (the “2025 Term Loan”), and (iii) a $150.0 million senior unsecured term loan
maturing in April 2026 (the “2026 Term Loan” and together with the Revolving Credit Facility and the 2025 Term Loan, the “KeyBank Loans”). The Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also provides the option, subject to obtaining additional commitments from lenders and certain other customary
conditions, to increase the commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility, to increase the existing term loans and/or incur new term loans by up to an
additional $1.0 billion in the aggregate. As of June 30, 2024, the available undrawn capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility was $172.1 million.

On July 25, 2024, the Operating Partnership, as “Borrower”, KeyBank and the lending institutions which are party thereto, entered into that certain Eighth
Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Eighth Amendment”), which amends the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, (as amended by the Eighth Amendment, the “Amended Credit Agreement”). The Company and certain of its subsidiaries guarantee the obligations
of the Operating Partnership under the Amended Credit Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meaning given to them in the Eighth
Amendment or the Amended Credit Agreement, as applicable. The Eighth Amendment provides, in part, the following:

• The Operating Partnership reduced the outstanding principal balance of the 2025 Term Loan from $400.0 million to $210.0 million, and the maturity
date of the reduced 2025 Term Loan was extended to July 25, 2028 (now, the “2028 Term Loan”);

• The maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility was extended by four years from the closing date of the Eighth Amendment to July 25, 2028;

• The maximum commitment amount under the Revolving Credit Facility was reduced from $750.0 million to $547.0 million (calculated as of June 30,
2024);

• The Eighth Amendment also provides the option, subject to obtaining additional commitments from lenders and satisfying certain other customary
conditions, to increase the commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility, to increase the outstanding principal balance under existing term loans
and/or incur new term loans by up to approximately $400.0 million in the aggregate (for a maximum facility size of $1.3 billion).
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• The interest rate with respect to drawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility can be based on either SOFR or Base Rate at the Operating
Partnership’s election. At closing of the Eighth Amendment, the Operating Partnership had elected SOFR (interest periods for SOFR may be daily, 1
month or 3 months at the Operating Partnership’s election, with a 0.10% index adjustment in each case (“Applicable SOFR”)). The interest rate with
respect to drawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility that constitute “SOFR Loans” (being all drawn amounts as of June 30, 2024) was
increased by 0.35% from the rate in effect as of June 30, 2024 (such that the interest rate ranges between Applicable SOFR + 1.65% and Applicable
SOFR + 2.55%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio). With respect to any drawn amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility
that are “Base Rate Loans” (being none as of June 30, 2024), the interest rate was increased by 0.35% from the rate in effect as of June 30, 2024 (such
that the interest rate ranges between Base Rate + 0.65% and Base Rate + 1.55%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio);

• The interest rate with respect to the 2028 Term Loan can be based on either SOFR or Base Rate at the Operating Partnership’s election. At closing of
the Eighth Amendment, the Operating Partnership had elected SOFR. The interest rate for any portion of the 2028 Term Loan that is a SOFR Loan
(being all outstanding amounts as of June 30. 2024) increased by 0.35%, from the rate in effect as of June 30, 2024 (such that the interest rate ranges
between Applicable SOFR + 1.60% and Applicable SOFR + 2.50%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio). The interest rate for
any portion of the 2028 Term Loan that is a Base Rate Loan (being none as of June 30, 2024) increased by 0.35%, from the rate in effect as of June 30,
2024 (such that the interest rate ranges between Base Rate + 0.60% and Base Rate + 1.50%, depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio);

• The availability under the Revolving Credit Facility (the “Borrowing Base”) is based, in part, on a stipulated Capitalization Rate for the assets
constituting Pool Properties. Prior to the Eighth Amendment, the Capitalization Rate was 7% for all of the Company’s Pool Properties (without regard
to the type of asset). Pursuant to the Eighth Amendment, the Capitalization Rate for industrial assets is now 6% and the Capitalization Rate for office
assets is now 8%;

• The Borrowing Base was also redefined in the Eighth Amendment such that it is determined as the sum of:

a. for industrial assets, the lesser of (i) sixty percent (60%) of the value of all Pool Properties that are industrial properties calculated using the
applicable Capitalization Rate (i.e., 6%, as noted above) and the annualized Net Operating Income for the prior quarter from all such Pool
Properties that are industrial properties; or (ii) a loan amount which would provide a modified debt service coverage ratio for the industrial
assets of 1.25:1.00 (based on an imputed interest rate equal to the greater of the 10-year U.S. Treasury rate plus 2.25%, and 5.0%, and
imputed amortization on a 30-year schedule, see definition of Industrial UAP DSCR in the Eighth Amendment); and

b. for office assets, the lesser of (i) fifty percent (50%) of the value of all Pool Properties that are office properties calculated using the
applicable Capitalization Rate (i.e., 8%, as noted above) and the annualized Net Operating Income for the prior quarter from all such Pool
Properties that are office properties; or (ii) a loan amount which would provide a modified debt service coverage ratio for the office assets of
1.45:1.00 (based on an imputed interest rate equal to the greater of the 10-year U.S. Treasury rate plus 2.75%, and 6.5%, and imputed
amortization on a 30-year schedule, see definition of Office UAP DSCR in the Eighth Amendment).

• In connection with the Eighth Amendment, the Operating Partnership has entered into certain interest rate hedging instruments, in the form of
forward-starting, floating to fixed SOFR interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $550.0 million. These swaps become effective July 1, 2025, and
mature July 1, 2029 and have the effect of converting SOFR to a weighted average fixed rate of interest payable by the Operating Partnership of
3.58%. These hedges are in excess of the hedging requirements under the Amended Credit Agreement.

47



Table of Contents

ATM Program

In August 2023, we entered into an at-the-market equity offering (the “ATM”) pursuant to which we may sell common shares up to an aggregate purchase
price of $200.0 million. We may sell such shares in amounts and at times to be determined by us from time to time, but we have no obligation to sell any of the
shares. Actual sales, if any, will depend on a variety of factors to be determined by us from time to time, including, among other things, market conditions, the
trading price of our common shares, capital needs, and our determinations of the appropriate sources of funding. As of June 30, 2024, we have not sold any
shares under the ATM program.

Other Potential Sources of Capital

Other potential sources of capital include proceeds from private or public offerings of our common shares or OP Units, proceeds from secured or
unsecured financings from banks or other lenders, including debt assumed in a real estate transaction, and entering into joint venture arrangements to invest in
assets. If necessary, we may use other sources of capital in the event of unforeseen expenditures.

Uses of Liquidity

Contractual Obligations

Our material cash requirements as of June 30, 2024 included the following contractual obligations:

Debt and Ground Lease Obligations Total Payments Remaining 2024 Thereafter
Outstanding debt obligations $ 1,413,999  $ 19,882  $ 1,394,117 
Interest on outstanding debt obligations 185,636  42,469  143,167 
Ground lease obligations 261,889  1,067  260,822 
Total $ 1,861,524  $ 63,418  $ 1,798,106 

(1) Amounts only include principal payments. The payments on our mortgage debt do not include the premium/discount or debt financing costs.

(2) Projected interest payments are based on the outstanding principal amounts at June 30, 2024. Projected interest payments on our KeyBank Loans are based on the contractual interest rates in
effect at June 30, 2024.

(3) On July 25, 2024, the Company entered into an Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, which modified, among other terms, maturity dates of certain loans,
the interest rate, the maximum commitment amount under the Revolving Loan, and certain terms related to debt covenants. Refer to Sources of Liquidity - Credit Facility for further details.

Additionally, as of June 30, 2024, the Company had an aggregate remaining contractual commitment for capital expenditures, leasing commissions and
tenant improvements of approximately $13.7 million.

Dividends and Distributions

Dividends will be authorized at the discretion of our Board and be paid to our shareholders and holders of OP Units as of the record date selected by our
Board. We expect to pay dividends on a quarterly basis unless our results of operations, our general financial condition, general economic conditions, or other
factors inhibit us from doing so. During the three months ended June 30, 2024, our Board declared an all-cash dividend in the amount of $0.225 per common
share and an all-cash distribution in the amount of $0.225 per OP Unit.

Additionally, to qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements on a continuing basis, including the
requirement that we annually distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding net
capital gain, to our shareholders. As a result of this requirement, we cannot rely on retained earnings to fund our business needs to the same extent as other
entities that are not REITs. If we do not have sufficient funds available to us from our operations to fund our business needs, we will need to find alternative
ways to fund those needs. As of June 30, 2024, the Company satisfied the REIT requirements and distributed all of its taxable income.

(3)

(1)

(2)
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Outstanding Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company’s consolidated debt consisted of the following:

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Contractual Interest 

Rate 
Loan

Maturity
Effective Interest

Rate
Secured Debt

Pepsi Bottling Ventures Mortgage Loan $ 17,236  $ 17,439  3.69% October 2024 3.80%
AIG Loan II 105,576  119,953  4.15% November 2025 4.84%
BOA II Loan 250,000  250,000  4.32% May 2028 4.14%
AIG Loan 91,187  92,444  4.96% February 2029 5.12%
Highway 94 Mortgage Loan —  (4) 11,709  —% (4) — (4) —%

Total Secured Debt 463,999  491,545 
Unsecured Debt

Revolving Loan 400,000  400,000  SOF Rate + 1.30% (5) January 2026 (6) 7.11%
2025 Term Loan 400,000  400,000  SOF Rate + 1.25% (5) December 2025 7.00%
2026 Term Loan 150,000  150,000  SOF Rate + 1.25% (5) April 2026 6.84%

Total Unsecured Debt 950,000  950,000 
Total Debt 1,413,999  1,441,545 

Unamortized Deferred Financing Costs and
Discounts, net (5,482) (5,622)

Total Debt, net $ 1,408,517  $ 1,435,923 

(1) Including the effect of the interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of $750.0 million, the weighted average interest rate as of June 30, 2024 was 4.20% for both the
Company’s fixed-rate and variable-rate debt combined and 3.77% for the Company’s fixed-rate debt only.

(2) Reflects the loan maturity dates as of June 30, 2024.

(3) The Effective Interest Rate for the Company's unsecured debt is calculated on a weighted average basis and is inclusive of the Company's $750 million floating to fixed interest rate swaps.

(4) Highway 94 Mortgage loan was paid off in full in March 2024 in connection with the tenant’s closing on exercise of its purchase option for the Other segment property located in Jefferson City,
Missouri.

(5) The applicable SOFR as of June 30, 2024 (calculated per the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) was 5.31%.

(6) During the quarter ended June 30, 2024, the Company exercised its option to extend the Revolving Loan Maturity Date (as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) to
January 31, 2026.

(7) On July 25, 2024, the Company entered into an Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, which modified, among other terms, maturity dates of certain loans,
the interest rate, the maximum commitment amount under the Revolving Loan, and certain terms related to debt covenants. Refer to Sources of Liquidity - Credit Facility for further details.

Debt Covenants

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s mortgage loans and the KeyBank Loans, the Operating Partnership, in consolidation with the Company, is subject
to certain loan compliance covenants. As of June 30, 2024, there have been no significant changes in these debt covenants from what was disclosed in our most
recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. We were in compliance with all of our required debt covenants at June 30, 2024.

Pursuant to the Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, as previously mentioned, certain terms related to debt
covenants were modified as of July 25, 2024. Refer to Sources of Liquidity - Credit Facility for further details.

(1) (2) (3)
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Summary of Cash Flows

Comparison of cash flow activity as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 is as follows (in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 Change

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 40,728  $ 24,765  $ 15,963 
Net cash provided by investing activities $ 67,870  $ 289,155  $ (221,285)
Net cash used in financing activities $ (48,312) $ (188,196) $ 139,884 

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash were $461.3 million and $363.7 million as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 respectively.

Operating Activities. Cash flows provided by operating activities are primarily dependent on the occupancy level, the rental rates of our leases, the
collectability of rent and recovery of operating expenses from our tenants, and the timing and success of our investing activities. During the six months ended
June 30, 2024, we generated $40.7 million in cash from operating activities compared to $24.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in
cash from operating activities was primarily due to significant decreases in transaction expenses incurred as a result of the Listing in 2023.

Investing Activities. Cash provided by investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following (in thousands):

  Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 Change

Sources of cash provided by investing activities:
Proceeds from disposition of properties $ 69,940  $ 291,023  $ (221,083)

Total sources of cash provided by investing activities $ 69,940  $ 291,023  $ (221,083)
Uses of cash for investing activities:

Payments for construction in progress $ (2,029) $ (1,719) $ (310)
Purchase of investments (41) (149) 108 

Total uses of cash used in investing activities $ (2,070) $ (1,868) $ (202)

 Net cash provided by investing activities $ 67,870  $ 289,155  $ (221,285)
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Financing Activities. Cash used in financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30,
2024 2023 Change

Sources of cash provided by (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings - Credit Facility $ —  $ 400,000  $ (400,000)

Total sources of cash provided by financing activities $ —  $ 400,000  $ (400,000)
Uses of cash for financing activities:

Principal payoff of secured indebtedness - Mortgage Debt (24,563) (19,013) (5,550)
Principal payoff of indebtedness - Term Loan —  (400,000) 400,000 
Principal amortization payments on secured indebtedness (2,984) (3,643) 659 
Offering costs 91  (9) 100 
Deferred financing costs (2,647) (2,580) (67)
Redemption of preferred units —  (125,000) 125,000 
Repurchase of common shares —  (4,443) 4,443 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (1,447) (2,401) 954 
Distributions to preferred units subject to redemption —  (4,891) 4,891 
Repurchase of common shares to satisfy employee tax withholding requirements (79) (1,450) 1,371 
Distributions to common shareholders (16,466) (24,551) 8,085 
Financing lease payment (217) (215) (2)

Total sources of cash used in financing activities $ (48,312) $ (588,196) $ 539,884 

 Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities $ (48,312) $ (188,196) $ 139,884 
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary market risk to which we believe we may be exposed is interest rate risk, including the risk of changes in the underlying rates on our variable
rate debt, which may result from factors that are beyond our control. Our current indebtedness consists of the KeyBank Loans and other loans and property
secured mortgages as described in Note 5. Debt, to our consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. These instruments
were not entered into for trading or speculative purposes.

We may enter into interest rate hedging instruments (collectively, “Interest Rate Swaps”) to provide greater predictability in interest expense by protecting
against potential increases in floating interest rates and allow for more precise budgeting, financial planning and forecasting. We will not enter into these
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The use of these types of instruments to hedge a portion of our exposure to changes in interest rates carries
additional risks, such as counterparty credit risk and the legal enforceability of hedging contracts.

Changes in interest rates have different impacts on the fixed and variable rate debt. A change in interest rates on fixed rate debt impacts its fair value but
has no effect on interest incurred or cash flows. A change in interest rates on variable rate debt could affect the interest incurred and cash flows and its fair
value. Our future earnings and fair values relating to variable rate debt are primarily dependent upon prevalent market rates of interest, such as SOFR.
However, our Interest Rate Swaps are intended to reduce the effects of interest rate changes.

As of June 30, 2024, our debt, excluding unamortized deferred financing costs and discounts/premiums, consisted of approximately $1.2 billion in fixed
rate debt (including Interest Rate Swaps) and approximately $200.0 million in variable rate debt. As of June 30, 2024, the effect of an increase of 100 basis
points in interest rates, assuming a SOFR floor of 0%, on our variable-rate debt, including our KeyBank Loans, after considering the effect of our Interest Rate
Swaps, would decrease our future earnings and cash flows by approximately $2.0 million annually.

As of July 25, 2024, pursuant to the Eighth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, our debt, excluding unamortized
deferred financing cost and discounts/premiums, consisted of approximately $1.2 billion in fixed rate debt (including Interest Rate Swaps) and no variable debt.

Interest rate risk amounts were determined by considering the impact of hypothetical interest rates on our financial instruments. These analyses do not
consider the effect of any change in overall economic activity that could occur, which may result in us taking actions to further mitigate our exposure to the
change. However, due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, these analyses assume no changes in our financial
structure.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, management, with the participation of our principal executive and principal
financial officers, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)). Based upon, and as of the date of the evaluation, our chief executive officer (our
principal executive officer) and chief financial officer (our principal financial officer) concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective to
provide reasonable assurance as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that information required to be disclosed in the reports
we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported when required. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act
is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. There have been no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the six months ended June 30, 2024, there were no sales of unregistered securities.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the three months ended June 30, 2024, the Company did not repurchase any shares.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

During the three months ended June 30, 2024, no trustee or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or “non-
Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,” each term as defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2024 (and are numbered in accordance with
Item 601 of Regulation S-K).

53



Table of Contents

Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 Declaration of Trust, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on January 20, 2023, SEC

File No. 000-55605
3.2 Articles of Amendment to Declaration of Trust, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed

on March 10, 2023, SEC File No. 000-55605
3.3 Articles of Amendment to Declaration of Trust, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed

on April 17, 2023, SEC File No. 001-41686
3.4 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on

March 20, 2023, SEC File No. 000-55605
4.1 Third Amended and Restated Share Redemption Program, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form

10-K, filed on March 24, 2023, SEC File No. 000-55605
10.1 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (NEOs) for 2024, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Registrant’s Annual

Report on Form 10-K, filed on February 22, 2024, SEC File No. 001-41686
10.2 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Employees) for 2024, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the Registrant’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed on February 22, 2024, SEC File No. 001-41686
10.3* Assignment and Assumption of Sublease, dated as of February 29, 2024, by and between Peakstone Realty Trust and PKST OP, L.P.
10.4* Second Amendment to Sublease, dated as of May 1, 2024, by and between Griffin Capital Company, LLC and PKST OP, L.P.
10.5 First Amendment to the Peakstone Realty Trust Second Amended and Restated Employee and Trustee Long-Term Incentive Plan, incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 21, 2024, SEC file No. 001-41686
10.6 Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 25, 2024, by and among PKST OP, L.P., KeyBank

National Association, as administrative agent and the lending institutions which are party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 29 2024, SEC file No. 001-41686

31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1** Certification of Principal Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

32.2** Certification of Principal Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

101* The following Peakstone Realty Trust financial information for the period ended June 30, 2024 formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business
Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets (unaudited), (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited), (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income (unaudited), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Equity (unaudited), (v) Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows (unaudited) and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).
* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PEAKSTONE REALTY TRUST
(Registrant)

Dated: August 8, 2024 By:   /s/ Javier F. Bitar

  Javier F. Bitar

 
On behalf of the Registrant and as Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 10.3

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF SUBLEASE

This Assignment and Assumption of Sublease (this “Agreement”) is made as of February  29, 2024, by and between
Peakstone Realty Trust, a Maryland real estate investment trust (“Assignor”) f/k/a Griffin Realty Trust, Inc., and PKST OP, L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership (“Assignee”).

Recitals:

A.    Griffin Capital Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Sublessor”), and Assignor are parties to that certain
Sublease, dated September 1, 2021 (as amended from time to time, the “Sublease”), pursuant to which Assignor subleases from
Sublessor the office building located at 1520 E. Grand Avenue, El Segundo, CA 90245, as more particularly described in the
Sublease.

B.    Pursuant to that certain Consent of Master Landlord to Sublease and Acknowledgment by Sublessor and Sublessee, dated
September 1, 2021, and attached to the Sublease as Exhibit D thereto (as amended from time to time, the “Consent”), GCPI, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (and the Master Landlord under the Master Lease) (“Master Landlord”), consented to the
Sublease and the parties made certain other agreements related to the Sublease and Master Lease.

C.        Master Landlord and Assignor are also parties to that certain Joinder/Agreement to Provide Right of First Offer, dated
September 1, 2021, and attached to the Sublease (as amended from time to time, the “Joinder”).

D.    Assignor desires to assign to Assignee its right, title, interest and estate under, in and to the Sublease, Consent and Joinder,
and Assignee desires to accept that assignment, all in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Agreement:

Now, Therefore, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms. Words whose initial letters are capitalized are defined terms. Any capitalized term that is not defined in this
Agreement shall have the same meaning that is ascribed to that term in the Sublease (or, if not defined in the Sublease, shall have the
same meaning that is ascribed to that term in the Master Lease).

2. Assignment and Assumption.

2.1 Assignment. Assignor hereby grants, sells, bargains, conveys, transfers and assigns to Assignee, its successors and
assigns, all of Assignor’s right, title, interest and estate under, in and to the Sublease, the Consent and the Joinder (collectively, the
“Sublease Documents”).



2.2 Assumption. Assignee hereby accepts the sale, bargain, conveyance, transfer and assignment by Assignor to
Assignee, its successors and assigns, of all of Assignor’s right, title, interest and estate under, in and to the Sublease Documents, and
assumes and agrees to perform and discharge all of Assignor’s obligations arising under the Sublease Documents on or after the date
of this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that the Joinder is being terminated pursuant to
a first amendment to the Sublease being entered into between Assignee and Sublessor after the execution and delivery of this
Agreement.

3. Additional Provisions.

3.1 Recitals. The Recitals to this Agreement are hereby incorporated by reference into the body of this Agreement.

3.2 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.

3.3 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed electronically (including via DocuSign) and in counterparts, each of
which shall be an original and all of which counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Electronic
copies of the executed copies of this Agreement may be delivered to the parties by facsimile transmission or email and, upon receipt,
shall be deemed originals and binding upon the parties hereto.

3.4 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State in
which the Subleased Premises is located.

3.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (and the Sublease, Consent and Joinder as assigned by this Agreement) embodies
the entire agreement and understanding of the parties related to its subject matter and supersedes all prior proposals, understandings,
agreements, correspondence, arrangements and contemporaneous oral agreements relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Witness, the duly authorized signatures of Assignor and Assignee, as of the date first set forth above.

ASSIGNOR:

Peakstone Realty Trust,
a Maryland real estate investment trust

By:    /s/ Javier Bitar

Name:    Javier Bitar

Title:    Chief Financial Officer

ASSIGNEE:

PKST OP, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership

By:    Peakstone Realty Trust, a Maryland real estate investment trust, its general partner

By:    /s/ Javier Bitar

Name:    Javier Bitar

Title:    Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 10.4

SECOND AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE

This Second Amendment to Sublease (this “Amendment”) is made as of May  1, 2024, by and between Griffin Capital
Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Sublessor”), and PKST OP, L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership (“Sublessee”).

Recitals:

A.    Sublessor and Sublessee (as successor to Peakstone Realty Trust f/k/a Griffin Realty Trust, Inc. by assignment) are parties to
that certain Sublease, dated September 1, 2021, as amended by that certain First Amendment to Sublease, dated March 1, 2024 (as
amended from time to time, the “Sublease”), pursuant to which Sublessee subleases from Sublessor the office building located at
1520 E. Grand Avenue, El Segundo, CA 90245, as more particularly described in the Sublease.

B.    Pursuant to that certain Consent of Master Landlord to Sublease and Acknowledgment by Sublessor and Sublessee, dated
September 1, 2021, and attached to the Sublease as Exhibit D thereto (as amended from time to time, the “Consent”), GCPI, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (and the Master Landlord under the Master Lease) (“Master Landlord”), consented to the
Sublease and the parties made certain other agreements related to the Sublease and Master Lease.

C.    Master Landlord and Sublessor have agreed to amend and restate in its entirety the Master Lease referenced in the Sublease
(such original Master Lease, the “Original Master Lease”) pursuant to the terms of that certain Amended and Restated Lease,
dated May 1, 2024 (as amended from time to time, the “New Master Lease”), effective as of the date of the New Master Lease (the
“New Master Lease Effective Date”).

D.    Sublessor and Sublessee desire to amend the Sublease to reflect the foregoing and make certain other modifications thereto,
all pursuant to the terms of this Amendment.

Agreement:

Now, Therefore, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms. Words whose initial letters are capitalized are defined terms. Any capitalized term that is not defined in this
Amendment shall have the same meaning that is ascribed to that term in the Sublease (or, if not defined in the Sublease, shall have
the same meaning that is ascribed to that term in the Master Lease).

2. Consent of Sublessee. Sublessee hereby consents to the execution and delivery of the New Master Lease by Sublessor and
Master Landlord. Nothing in this Amendment shall be deemed to be a consent by Sublessee to any subsequent amendment to or
modification of the Master Lease.



3. Acknowledgments and Agreements of the Parties.

3.1 References to “Master Lease”. Sublessor, Sublessee and Master Landlord acknowledge and agree that, from and
after the New Master Lease Effective Date, the New Master Lease shall be the “Master Lease” under the Sublease and Consent.

3.2 Impact of New Master Lease. For the avoidance of doubt, Sublessor and Master Landlord acknowledge and agree
that the execution and delivery of the New Master Lease is not intended to (and shall not) increase Sublessee’s Rent obligations
under the Sublease.

4. Reaffirmation of Consent. Notwithstanding the amendment and restatement of the Master Lease or the modifications to the
Sublease set forth in this Amendment, Sublessor and Sublessee (a) acknowledge and agree that the Consent shall remain in full force
and effect with respect to the Sublease (as amended by this Amendment), (b) reaffirm their respective obligations under the Consent
and (c) agree that any reference made in the Consent to the Sublease or any terms or conditions contained therein shall mean the
Sublease or those terms or conditions as modified by this Amendment.

5. Additional Provisions.

5.1 No Further Modifications. Except as expressly modified in this Amendment, the Sublease shall remain in full force
and effect and is expressly ratified and confirmed by the parties hereto.

5.2 Recitals. The Recitals to this Amendment are hereby incorporated by reference into the body of this Amendment.

5.3 Brokers. Each party represents and warrants to the other that it neither consulted nor negotiated with any broker or
finder in connection with the negotiation or execution of this Amendment. Each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
other from and against any claims, losses, costs, expenses or damages that the indemnified party suffers in connection with the
indemnifying party’s breach of the foregoing representation and warranty.

5.4 Authority. Each party represents and warrants to the other that (a) the representing party is a duly formed and existing
entity qualified to do business in the state where the Subleased Premises is located, (b)  such party has full right and authority to
execute and deliver this Amendment, (c) each person signing on behalf of such party is authorized to do so, and (d) such party’s
execution and delivery of this Amendment shall not cause such party to be in violation of any mortgage, deed of trust, lease, loan,
credit agreement, partnership agreement or other contract or instrument by which it is bound, or any law, rule or regulation by which
it is bound. Sublessor further represents and warrants that GCPI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, is currently the Master
Landlord under the Master Lease.

5.5 Successors and Assigns. This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective successors and assigns.
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5.6 Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed electronically (including via DocuSign) and in counterparts, each of
which shall be an original and all of which counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Electronic
copies of the executed copies of this Amendment may be delivered to the parties by facsimile transmission or email and, upon
receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the parties hereto.

5.7 Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State in
which the Subleased Premises is located.

5.8 Entire Agreement. This Amendment (and the Sublease as amended by this Amendment, and the Consent) embodies
the entire agreement and understanding of the parties related to its subject matter and supersedes all prior proposals, understandings,
agreements, correspondence, arrangements and contemporaneous oral agreements relating to the subject matter of this Amendment.
No representation, promise, inducement or statement of intention has been made by any party that has not been embodied in this
Amendment (or the Sublease as amended by this Amendment, or the Consent).

[Signature Page Follows]
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Witness, the duly authorized signatures of Sublessor and Sublessee, as of the date first set forth above.

SUBLESSOR:

Griffin Capital Company, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:    /s/ Daniel Snell

Name:    Daniel Snell

Title:    CFO and Treasurer

SUBLESSEE:

PKST OP, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership

By:    Peakstone Realty Trust, a Maryland real estate investment trust, its general partner

By:    /s/ Javier F. Bitar

Name:    Javier F. Bitar

Title:    Chief Financial Officer
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CONSENT OF MASTER LANDLORD

Master Landlord hereby consents to the foregoing Amendment on the same terms as are set forth in the Consent. Further,
notwithstanding the amendment and restatement of the Master Lease or the modifications to the Sublease set forth in this
Amendment, Master Landlord (a) acknowledges and agrees that the Consent shall remain in full force and effect with respect to the
Sublease (as amended by this Amendment), (b) reaffirms its obligations under the Consent and (c) agrees that any reference made in
the Consent to the Sublease or any terms or conditions contained therein shall mean the Sublease or those terms or conditions as
modified by this Amendment. Further, Master Landlord hereby agrees to the terms of Section 3 of this Amendment.

MASTER LANDLORD:

GCPI, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:    The Shields 2009 Irrevocable Trust under Trust Agreement dated May 22, 2009,
its sole member

By:    /s/ Eileen Shields

Name:    Eileen Shields f/k/a Eileen Roggin

Title:    Family Trustee

By:    /s/ Eileen Shields

Name:    Eileen Shields f/k/a Eileen Roggin on behalf of Jordan Shields, pursuant to Delegation of
Authority by Co-Trustees, under The Shields 2009 Irrevocable Trust dated May 22, 2009

Title:    Independent Trustee
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Michael J. Escalante, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Peakstone Realty Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)), for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of trustees (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.



Dated: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Michael J. Escalante
Michael J. Escalante

Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Javier F. Bitar, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Peakstone Realty Trust;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)), for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of trustees (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.



Dated: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Javier F. Bitar
Javier F. Bitar

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Peakstone Realty Trust
(the “Company”), in connection with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2024 (the “Report”), hereby
certifies that:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Michael J. Escalante
Michael J. Escalante

Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Peakstone Realty Trust
(the “Company”), in connection with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2024 (the “Report”), hereby
certifies that:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Javier F. Bitar
Javier F. Bitar

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)


